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A

GENER A L
OVER V I E W
01
MESSAGE FR OM THE
COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON

The nationwide #FeesMustFall protests
that first erupted towards the end of 2015
cast a shadow over the 2016 year for
Boland College.
Some students, mainly on the Strand Campus,
disrupted learning and assessments during March,
protesting against provisions of the National Student
Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS), over which the College
had no control. Council is appreciative of the calm,
fair, and firm manner in which the Principal and her
management team managed the crisis.
The #FeesMustFall disruptions prompted the Council to
review some of its policies and procedures, including its
Action Plan for Non-approved Student Gatherings. The
importance of maintaining, monitoring and updating
the College’s risk register became apparent. A report
from the Chief Risk Officer is tabled at each Council
meeting and the Council focuses on two or three risks
per meeting.
At the request of the Department of Higher Education
& Training (DHET), the Council reviewed and adopted
a raft of 25 policies at its April meeting, with other
important documents also revised or adopted later in
the year. Among these was the College Charter, the
terms of reference of Council and the Executive
Committee of Council, an ethics charter, the student
code of conduct, and the language policy.
The College devoted considerable resources towards
the end of 2016 to publicise the new NSFAS procedures
to apply for the 2017 year, publicising the procedures on
social media and other communication channels, and
making staff available to assist students and applicants.
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The Council re-joined the TVETCGC (TVET Colleges
Governors’ Council) and participated in some of the
activities during 2016.
The longer-term strategic direction of Boland College
was consistently on the agenda of Council meetings,
with an on-going conversation between management
and Council under the general heading “Towards the
Next Generation College”.
Boland College established Open Learning Centres at
all five of its campuses in 2016. Each campus now has
a functional Open Learning Centre. The students have
been keen to utilise the facilities.
In July, the College Council and senior management
were represented at the official opening of the
Anene Booysen Skills Centre in Bredasdorp, a function
hosted by the Minister of Higher Education & Training,
Dr Blade Nzimande.

In its strategic plan submitted to the
DHET for 2016, Boland College recognised
its responsibility to:
- C ontinue to offer quality technical and
vocational education and training services
- E nhance student success by embarking on a
programme of academic support for students at all
sites of delivery
- F ocus on languages, mathematics, and mathematical
literacy
- E nsure that adequate infrastructure is in place to
increase access and provide services to students by
upgrading older facilities and providing learning
centres
- F orm partnerships with Industry and SETAs to assist
the Work Integrated Learning (WIL) Department in
the placement of students in the workplace

-E
 nsure commitment to business excellence and
good corporate governance in Council and Council
subcommittees
-E
 nsure that effective management of resources is
maintained.
Boland College implemented an integrated Business
Management System in 2016 which created a high
level of data accuracy and reliability. This also
addressed issues of security and integrity of data.
Implementation of a wide area network enabled video
conferencing, which improves staff productivity.

The College embarked on an e-learning
project in 2016 with the aim of enhancing
teaching and learning. The following
objectives related to e-learning have
been developed:
-C
 urriculum support to both student and lecturer
through a developed Learning Management
System (LMS)
- L ecturer development in quality curriculum content
for use on the LMS
- Mobile learning opportunities on campus for students
The Department of E-learning was identified to support
these strategic objectives.
Towards the end of 2016, the College wrote to the
Minister of Higher Education & Training explaining the
difficult situation it was in with regard to the provision
of student accommodation. The current funding
provision, as well as a reluctance on the part of students
to pay more for residence accommodation than NSFAS
allows, makes it impossible for the College residences
to break even.

The management and staff of Boland College are
to be congratulated on the achievements of 2016.
The College continues to provide an excellent service
to students, despite an increasingly constrained
financial environment.

DAV I D B L E AZAR D // Council Chairperson
03 August 2017
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02
OVERVIEW BY THE
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

It is with gratitude and pride that we wish to present
the annual report of 2016 to the stakeholders of
Boland College, highlighting the environment of the
College and its achievements, as well as the changed
environment in 2016. Specific priority areas were
identified to ensure more effective teaching and
learning, as well as systemic capacity building and
efficiency in the College in 2016.

Systemic capacity building and efficiency
Boland College implemented an integrated system
Sage (VIP People Payroll)/Coltech/Pastel (evolution
& assets & auditor software) in 2016 that integrated
all the systems of the College. The change resulted
in staff working more efficiently.
Institutional governance, management and leadership

These priority areas were:
Growth and expansion of access and articulation
opportunities for the youth.
It is the vision of Boland College to grow and
expand access in Artisan Development. The College
implemented competency based modular training
(CBMT) to afford students opportunities to enrol for
ministerial programmes aimed at achieving artisanship
in Engineering which could lead to meaningful
employment.
Improvement of quality and success in terms of the
academic achievement and certification of students.
Boland College continued to provide academic
support programmes for all students, which include
a mentoring process, with a focus on fundamental
subjects. Job readiness programmes were offered to
all students. The College placed lecturers in the
workplace to gain Work Integrated Learning.
Partnerships and linkages with industry, sector
education and training authorities (SETAs) and/or
other professional bodies and/or institutions of Higher
Education to adequately prepare student graduates to
enter the labour market and/or be afforded further and
higher learning opportunities
Boland College maintained good relationships with
SETAs such as Merseta, Chieta, EW Seta and CETA for
the funding of artisan development. Many other SETAs
contributed funding to occupational projects of Boland
College and also assisted the College with funding for
placement of students.
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The College Council had been fully functional and
contributed to the success of Boland College.
Council members were from all spheres representing,
inter alia, academia, law, business, finance and
human resources.
The College was fortunate to have sound and effective
structures for its management.
Monitoring and evaluation of college performance
Each Vice-Principal had to report on the performance
of his/her division at various forums. The College
allocated the responsibility for ad-hoc reports to DHET
to a relevant departmental manager. One person was
made responsible for the submission of the quarterly
and semester reports on College performance to DHET.
Green Initiative
Strategically the College embarked on a process
of integrating QMS and environment, aiming to be
audited and certified for the environmental
management process. Education and training staff
and students participated in environmental initiatives.
Good leadership in managing this initiative by one of
the Deputy Principals represented the success of the
project. This project has now been internalised in the
College operations.

E C M Y B U R G H // Principal
30 June 2017
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:

01All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual
report are consistent.

02The annual report has been prepared in accordance with

the guidelines issued by the Department of Higher Education
and Training.

03The annual financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with the relevant standards, frameworks and
guidelines issued by National Treasury.

04The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for

the preparation of the annual financial statements and for
the judgements made in this document.

05The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for

establishing and implementing a system of internal control
that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as
to the integrity and reliability of the performance information,
the human resources information and the annual financial
statements.

06The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an

independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations,
the performance information, the human resources information
and the financial affairs of Boland TVET College for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

E C M Y B UR G H // Principal
30 June 2017

05

04
STRATEGIC
OVERVIEW
4 . 1 V I S I O N , M I S S I O N A N D VA L U E S T A T E M E N T S

VISION

MISSION

VALUES

Where we want to be

Why we exist

How we behave

Preferred and inclusive provider
of post-school education and
training in order to fulfil the
economic, social, technological
and environmental goals of
society.

It is the mission of Boland College
to respond to the education and
skills development needs in the
wider Boland region and to
enhance employability by providing
accredited quality vocational
and occupational education.

-

Strategic goals and initiatives
What we are going to do.

Individual performance
How we manage our individual
performance.

Organisational performance
How we manage our collective
performance.

Inclusivity
Openness and transparency
Efficient and ethical work habits
Team work
Strategic partnership
Student centredness

4.2 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
S T R AT E G I C O B J E C T I V E S

O U T C O M E & I M PA C T

To provide quality technical and vocational
education and training services and increase
academic achievement and success of students.

To improve quality of technical and vocational
education and training provision through the
development of teaching and learning support plans,
inclusive of appropriate student support.

To have adequate infrastructure and systems in
place to increase access and provide effective
services to students.

To ensure institutional capacity and efficiency in
terms of the provision of access and support services
to students.

To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder
relations to increase the number of students who are
adequately prepared to enter the labour market or
make use of further and higher learning opportunities.

To increase the number of students who are able to
access formal or self-employment and/or further and
higher education and training opportunities. To provide
work placement opportunities for lecturing staff in order
to improve quality of teaching and learning.

To ensure continuous business excellence in terms of
good corporate governance and effectual management
of all College resources, as well as information and
data reporting.

To govern and steer the College to function optimally
and take appropriate action where deficiencies are
detected.

To monitor and evaluate all College processes in
terms of the TVET College Monitoring and Evaluation
Framework and report quarterly on College performance
in this regard.

To monitor and report on College systemic efficiency
so that appropriate action is taken where deficiencies
are detected.
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LEGISLATIVE AND
OT H E R M A N DAT E S
5.1 LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK
In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing
Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of
2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational
education and training (TVET) colleges are required to
produce annual financial reports and to comply with any
reasonable additional reporting requirement established
by the Minister. Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires
colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its
performance and its use of available resources.
In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer
the College in terms of achievement of its strategic and
performance objectives:
-N
 ational Qualifications Framework (NQF) Act
(No 67 of 2008)
- Higher Education (HE) Act (No 101 of 1997)
- Skills Development Act (No 97 of 1998)
- Skills Development Levies Act (no 9 of 1999)
- G eneral and Further Education and Training Quality
Assurance Act (No 58 of 2001).
- T he Public Financial Management Act (1999) (Act No 1
of 1999) and Treasury Regulations (2005) (as amended)
- T he Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
(2000) (Act no 5 of 2000) and Regulations (2001)
(as amended)
- T he Employment Equity Act (1998) (Act no 55 of 1998)
(as amended)
- T he Basic Conditions of Employment Act (1997)
(Act no 75 of 1997) (as amended)
- T he Labour Relations Act (Act no 66 of 1955)
(as amended)
- O ccupational Health and Safety Act (Act no 85
of 1993) (as amended)
- Skills Development Act (as amended)
- Protected Disclosure Act 2000 (Act no 26 of 2000)

- P romotion of Access to Information Act 2000 (Act no 2
of 2000) and the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act
2000 (Act no 3 of 2000)
In addition, the White Paper for Post-School Education
and Training mandates delivery and strategic priorities in
the TVET colleges sector. Other policy mandates include:
-

National Trade Testing Regulations
SETA Grant Regulations
National Skills Development Strategy
Public TVET College Attendance and Punctuality Policy
P olicy on the Conduct of National Examinations and
Assessment.

5 . 2 A nnual C ycle of R e p orting
The final annual reports of the TVET colleges must be
submitted to the Department on the last day of June the
following year. These reports, referred to in Sections 25
and 44 of the CET Colleges Act, must include:
- a report on the overall management and
governance of the college
- a report on its overall performance and use of
available resources
- duly audited annual financial statements
- a ny additional information required by the Minister
in terms of the Act

5.3 A
 udits and verification
timeframes
The table below reflects the periods during which audits
will be conducted annually for enrolment dataset of the
previous academic year as per “Audit and Verification of
TVET College Enrolment Policy:

External audit by AG

April to May annually

Internal audit by College-appointed auditors
Departmental Verification

February to March annually

Annual report submission with unaudited headcount (electronic copy)

31 March of year of audit

Annual financial statements (unaudited) submission

31 March of year of audit

Annual financial statements (audited) submission

31 May of year of audit

Annual report submission with audited headcount

30 June of year of audit
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HIGH-LEVEL
ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

P R I N C I PA L
E C M yburgh

vice P R I N C I P A L

vice P R I N C I P A L

E D U C A T I O N & T R A I N I N G //

I N N O VA T I O N & D E V E L O P M E N T //

e PETERS

W ADAMS

SENIOR MANAGER

CAMPUS MANAGERS

EDUCATION

C A L E D O N // S S I E B E R H A G E N

SENIOR
MANAGER

& T R A I N I N G //

PA A R L // I H A R T M A N

INTERNAL AUDIT

S RAUBENHEIMER

S T E L L E N B O S C H // N M T Y E L A

& R I S K // H J F O U R I E

S T R A N D // VA C A N T
W O R C E S T E R // C C O R D I E R

MANAGER

MANAGERS

MANAGER

SOURCING &

MARKETING & CORPORATE

Q U A L I T Y //

A C C R E D I T A T I O N // R B O O Y S E N

C O M M U N I C A T I O N // J B A K K E R

A VA N R E N S B U R G

H E A D O F D E PA R T M E N T

S T U D E N T S U P P O R T // R B A X T E R

S EMJEDI

H E A D O F D E PA R T M E N T S
C A L E D O N // E B O N G E R S
PA A R L // H VA N V O O R E & R S T O F B E R G
S T E L L E N B O S C H // I V D W E S T H U I Z E N & W V D W E S T H U I Z E N
S T R A N D // D P L A A T J I E S ( A C T I N G A S C A M P U S M A N A G E R )
W O R C E S T E R // S J U L I U S & D C R O N J É
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164
249
01
04
01

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT
(AS AT DECEMBER 2016)

LECTURING
STAFF

SUPPORT
STAFF

vice P R I N C I P A L

vice P R I N C I P A L

F I N A N C E //

C O R P O R A T E S E R V I C E S //

IJ GELDERBLOM

JJM COETZEE

PRINCIPAL

VICE
PRINCIPALS

SENIOR MANAGER
A S S E T S & P R O C U R E M E N T //
CR NEAL

VACANT
POSTS

MANAGER

MANAGERS

F I N A N C E //

H U M A N R E S O U R C E S // J S A A L

M MACKRIEL

I N F R A S T R U C T U R E // A M A R E E
INFORMATION COMMUNICATION
T E C H N O L O G Y // A V E N T E R
R E S I D E N C E S // R P I E N A A R
S T U D E N T A D M I N I S T R A T I O N //
HA GELDENHUYS

Campus Manager
// Strand
ALREADY INCLUDED
IN ABOVE NUMBERS

01
ACTING
POSITIONS

ALREADY INCLUDED
IN ABOVE NUMBERS

418
TOTAL
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PERFORMANCE
I N FOR M AT I O N
01
COLLEGE PERFORMANCE
AND ORGANISATIONAL
ENVIRONMENT

1.1.2 Examination Performance

1 . 1 S trategic objective 1
To provide quality technical and vocational
education and training services and increase academic
achievement and success of students. To improve
quality of technical and vocational education and
training provision through the development of
teaching and learning support plans, inclusive of
appropriate student support.
1.1.1 Enrolment Performance (headcounts)
All enrolments in terms of headcounts improved from
2015 to 2016, except for the NC(V) where there was
a decrease of 63. The overall improvement was 1 072
which was distributed as follows:

Continued budgeting for academic support in targeted
areas such as poor performing subjects, including
specific subjects like Mathematics and Mathematical
Literacy, saw an overall significant improvement in
examination results. Academic interventions included
the following:
- In-class support by means of class assistants
- Tutoring
- A dditional periods allocated for ‘poor’ performing
subjects
- E-learning support and special software programmes
- Extra classes
- S pecific intervention programmes before the start
of formal classes, for example the ‘Ready Steady’
Mathematics programme.

The following are some of the
achievements:
1.1.2.1 NC(V)

PROGRAMME

2015

2016

NC(V) Levels 2 - 4

1 884

1 821

-63

Report 191 Business
N4 – N6

4 924

5 405

+481

574

629

3 100

3 699

10 482

11 554

Report 191 Engineering
N1 – N3
Occupational:
Learnerships/Skills/Other
TOTAL

VA R I A N C E

+55
+599
+1 072

The College’s intake for its Engineering programmes
improved and Competency Based Modular Training
(CBMT) was also introduced for the first time through a
Department of Economic Development and Tourism
(DEDAT) funded initiative aimed at qualifying learners
to take an electrical trade test.
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- T he Level 2 subject pass rate increased from 86% in
2015 to 88% in 2016. The retention and certification
rates declined. This can be attributed to the noncompliance of students to the DHET examination
admission requirements in terms of attendance and
sub-minimum Internal Continuous Assessment (ICASS),
which was implemented at Level 2 for the first time.
- T he Level 3 subject pass rate increased from 83% in 2015
to 87% in 2016.
- T he Level 3 retention rate increased from 77% in 2015 to
79% in 2016.
- T he Level 4 retention rate increased from 86% in 2015 to
87% in 2016.
- T here was a slight increase in the Level 3 certification
rate from 2015 to 2016.

1.1.2.2 N1 - N3 Engineering Studies Examination Results
- N 1, N2 and N3 subjects pass rates improved
respectively from 82%, 34% and 59% in 2015 to 90%,
59% and 65% in 2016.
- T he N3 retention rate improved from 86% in 2015 to
89% in 2016.
- T he N2 and N3 certification rates improved respectively
from 13% and 15% in 2015 to 18% and 31% in 2016.
1.1.2.3 N4 - N6 Business Studies Examination Results
-N
 4, N5 and N6 subjects pass rates improved
respectively from 87%, 87% and 86% in 2015 to 95%,
88% and 88% in 2016.
- N 4 and N6 certification rates improved respectively
from 56% and 49% in 2015 to 59% and 54% in 2016.
1.1.2.4 Mathematics Results
The table below shows overall significant improvement
in the Mathematics results when comparing 2015 to 2016.
There was a slight decrease in the N1 and N3 results
during the same period.

SUBJECT

2015

S U B J E C T PA S S R AT E
2015

2016

Mathematics NC(V) Level 2

67%

82%

NC(V) Level 3

65%

79%

NC(V) Level 4

52%

55%

N1

94%

93%

N2

45%

81%

N3

68%

62%

setting up the department, developing a strategy,
capacity building and ensuring budgets were aligned in
support thereof.
A Moodle platform was set up, OLCs with internet
connectivity were established at all campuses and
roadshows were held at each campus. Temporary
OLC clerks were also gradually appointed as the
infrastructure became available.

1 . 2 S trategic O bjective 2
To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place
to increase access and provide effective services to
students.
1.2.1 The following milestones were achieved in 2016:

1.1.3 E-learning
The construction of a Skills Centre at Paarl Campus
By restructuring the Education and Training Department,
a Head of Department post for Academic Support was
created in 2015 and filled in 2016. The responsibility of
coordinating Academic Support across five campuses,
which included the rolling out of E-learning initiatives as
well as operationalising Open Learning Centres (OLCs),
formed the basis of this portfolio. To further strengthen
the portfolio, an E-Learning coordinator post for
E-Learning and OLCs was also allocated to this
department. The major part of the year was spent on

The Skills Centre, located at Drakenstein Campus,
was completed in February 2016 and is being utilised
for practical skills programmes.
The enclosure/completion of the Skills Centre at
Strand Campus
The centre was completed in February 2016 and is being
utilised for practical skills programmes.
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The conversion of College houses in Hospital Street
at Paarl Drakenstein Campus into a new Open
Learning Centre
The OLC was completed in February 2016 as the
campus previously did not have such a facility. The
existing houses were then converted into the new OLC.
The conversion of the campus cafeteria into a new Open
Learning Centre at Stellenbosch Campus
The OLC was completed in February 2016 as the campus
previously did not have such a facility. A new cafeteria
had been established next to the new OLC facility which
is currently in operation.
The construction of a new staff room at Strand Campus

Painting and sundry refurbishment of Kolonieshof and
Rozenhof residences
Kolonieshof and Rozenhof were repainted by the
campus maintenance team and other sundry works
were completed in December 2016 included
replacement of cisterns and replacement of three
kitchenettes in Rozenhof, Kolonieshof and annex,
a shower upgrade on the 1st floor of Kolonieshof, a
new laundry room in the annex and upholstery of
various furniture items in the three residences.
W&R Seta grant – New mobile classroom at
Paarl Drakenstein Campus

The staffroom was completed in November 2016 and was
built in order to re-instate the existing OLC facility for its
initial purpose. The OLC had been utilised as a staff room
at Strand Campus in previous years.

The project was completed in December 2016.

Upgrading of hall ablutions and other ablutions at
Stellenbosch Campus

Re-instatement of the Open Learning Centre at
Strand Campus. Establishment of an Open Learning
Centre at Caledon Campus – conversion of Block G
(existing ECD facility).

Existing ablutions were upgraded, i.e. ablutions next to
the hall on the ground floor and ablutions next to the
elevator on the ground and first floors. The project was
completed in November 2016.
Worcester Campus – Conversion of the existing
care-takers’ house into academic facilities for the
Farming Section and the upgrading of two ablution
blocks in the academic building
Due to the need for additional academic and ablution
facilities for the Farming Section at Worcester Campus,
it was decided to convert the caretaker’s house into
these facilities. Two existing ablution blocks (Farming and
IT) were refurbished with the remainder of the funding.
The project was completed in June 2016.
Establishment of a student versatile area (cafeteria)
at Caledon Campus
No student cafeteria existed at Caledon Campus until
2016. An area adjacent to the residence kitchen was
converted into a cafeteria serving area and included a
sheltered/seating area for the students.
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Other minor projects completed in 2016
– Boland College Funding

1.2.2 Information Technology

All the links of Boland College’s wide
area network were upgraded to optic
fibre in 2016. This laid the foundation for
the following due to be rolled out in 2017:

01Voice Over Internet Protocol
02Improved internet access for learners and staff
03E-Learning
04Electronic Content Management
1 . 3 S trategic O bjective 3
To develop partnerships and maintain sound
stakeholder relations to increase the number of
students who are adequately prepared to enter the
labour market or afford themselves of further and
higher learning opportunities.

Active partnerships for 2016:
TYPE OF BUSINESS

As we are striving to uphold the theme of DHET, ‘turning
every workplace into a training space’, we had to focus
on sourcing relevant partners in order for our exit level
students to gain relevant experience. WIL is seen as an
important way to improve the quality of teaching and
learning, as well as to attain greater alignment between
College curricula and skills’ needs of industry. As our
placement market changed, we had to critically look
at our PRODUCT and BRAND.
The transition of students from a theoretical training
environment into the world of work can be a traumatic
and even unsettling experience for students who are
unable or are unprepared for the complexities and
rigors of entering the job market, hence our constant
interventions in the form of job readiness workshops
and WBE.
Moreover, the TEAM was constantly capacitated to
improve its ability to market students to employers
and to be informed of changes, e.g. BBBEE status of
businesses. Our partnerships for 2016 grew tremendously
due to funding from SETAs or employers to support
students with travelling allowances.

Currently we are actively working with:
FP&M seta // 30 students

Pseta // 32 students

Bank Seta // 39 students

Cath Seta // 28 students

W&R // 50 students

Services // 12 students

Work Readiness workshops for Januar y
to November 2016:

30
500
NUMBER OF
WORKSHOPS

STUDENTS THAT
ATTENDED

NUMBER

Government

37

Private

56

NGOs

6

SETAs

6

Occupational WIL

14

Occupational Business
T O TA L ( 2 0 1 6 )

4
123

1 . 4 S trategic O bjective 4
To ensure continuous business excellence in terms
of good corporate governance and effectual
management of all resources.
The Council of Boland College is fully functional and
meets every quarter. The sub-committees of Council
also meet quarterly and are informed of all the strategic
matters, as well as specific operational matters of the
College. Special meetings are held when necessary.
The EXCO of Management granted permission to change
the Boland College Management Information System
in 2015 to be implemented in 2016, which included the
student administration system, the financial system, the
asset system and the payroll and human resources.
The new systems have been integrated and include the
following: Sage (VIP people payroll), Coltech (student
administration) & Sage evolution (finance, assets &
auditor software).
Both Coltech and Sage evolution systems are running
smoothly, registration periods are done successfully and
all time periods are submitted successfully. Examination
results are processed successfully. The WIL component
was developed and has been successfully implemented.
It is now quite easy to draw reports and the system is also
much more user friendly than the previous system.

1 . 4 S trategic O bjective 5
To monitor and evaluate all Colleges’ systemic efficiency
so that appropriate action is taken where deficiencies
are detected.
Each Vice-Principal reported on the performance of his/
her division at various forums, including sub-committees
of Council. The College allocated the responsibility for
ad-hoc reports to the Department of Higher Education
and Training to a relevant departmental manager. The
College made one person responsible for submission
of the quarterly and semester reports on College performance to the Department of Higher Education and
Training. In doing so the College ensured that monitoring
and evaluation reports were submitted on time.
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02
PERFORMANCE
REPORTING

2.1 A
 NNUAL PERFORMANCE ACHIEVEMENTS
See the table below for the report on the achievement of annual
performance targets.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE #1
To provide quality technical and vocational education and
training ser vices and increase academic achievement and
success of students
P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C AT O R S

TVET COLLEGE
2016 PLANNED
TA R G E T

TVET COLLEGE
2016
ACHIEVEMENT

Appropriate teaching and
learning support plan developed
and implemented (n)

1

1

Appropriate student support plan
developed and implemented (n)

1

1

Improved certification rates in:
NC(V) L4 (%)

65%

41%

N3 (%)

29%

31%

N6 (%)

66%

54%

E X P L A N AT O R Y R E M A R K S

Plan is progressively being implemented.

Target to be adjusted more realistically.
National target 40%.
Exceeded target. Mathematics identified
as the subject at risk.
Below target, but improvement on
previous year. Need to set a more
realistic target.

Throughput rate (%)

66%

30%

Need to set a more realistic target.
The impact of the implementation of the
examination admission requirements of
the DHET is having an effect on
throughput.

Funded NC(V) L4 students
obtaining qualification within
stipulated time (%)

54%

50%

Need to improve on achievement.

TVET students enrolled in
foundation or bridging
programmes (n)

525

300

Limited funded opportunities available.

2 135

1 257

0

0

Students completing
artisan-related programmes (n)

Established centre/s of
specialisation (COS) (n)

14

Large improvement on previous years.
Strategy is to increase the intake in
accordance with available resources.
DHET process of allocation of COS is
underway. College awaits the finalisation
of the process.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE #2
To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place to
increase access and provide effective ser vices to students.

P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C AT O R S

Headcount enrolment (n)

Students accommodated in
College accommodation (n)

TVET COLLEGE
2016 PLANNED
TA R G E T

TVET COLLEGE
2016
ACHIEVEMENT

12 286

11 554

863

579

E X P L A N AT O R Y R E M A R K S

NC(V) Level 2 intake is having the
biggest negative impact on achieving
enrolment target.

DHET TVET College bursary scheme is
administered by NSFAS and has been
our primary source of funding to
provide a sustainable financial aid
system for financially needy yet
academically deserving students
for bursaries at our College.
Our performance was excellent in 2016
due to:

Qualifying students obtaining
financial assistance (n)

5 099

5 178

- O pen communication with our students
on social networks/platforms
- Inclusion of SRC Campus chairpersons
as part of our Central Fin Aid
committee
- E nsuring that students received a copy
of the guidelines
- S upporting SRC with relevant
information when facilitating
student parliaments
- T EAM building and capacitation
workshops to alleviate all challenges as
well as to have common understanding
of the implementation process.
- T EAM support and being target driven.
Our process continues to develop and
increase capacity to engage with donors to
assist our students.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE #3
To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder
relations to increase the number of students who are
adequately prepared to enter the labour market or take
up further and higher learning opportunities.
P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C AT O R S

Beneficial and functional college
partnerships (n)

TVET lecturers placed in workplaces for specified periods (n)

TVET students placed in
workplaces/industry for specified
periods for work exposure,
experiential learning and/or
certification purposes (n)

TVET COLLEGE
2016 PLANNED
TA R G E T

TVET COLLEGE
2016
ACHIEVEMENT

E X P L A N AT O R Y R E M A R K S

450

123

New partnerships concluded in 2016.
Students are often placed at host
employers with whom we already have
a signed MoU. Addendums to original
MoU are done in these instances.

20

0

Target was set for 2017. Need to
develop policy to support achievement
of a target.

7 371

WIL //
324
On course //
1 176
Occupational //
3 839

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE #4
To ensure continuous business excellence in ter ms of good
corporate governance and effectual management of all
college resources as well as infor mation and data reporting.
P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C AT O R S

TVET COLLEGE
2016 PLANNED
TA R G E T

TVET COLLEGE
2016
ACHIEVEMENT

Compliance to governance
standards (%)

100%

100%

Compliance to policies and
regulations applicable to the
TVET College sector (%)

100%

100%

4

2015 unqualified
audit
SABS audit
BBBEE audit
NSFAS audit

Obtaining unqualified audits or
assessments (n)

16

E X P L A N AT O R Y R E M A R K S

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE #5
To monitor and evaluate all college processes in ter ms of the
framework for TVET college perfor mance and report quarterly
in this regard.

P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C AT O R S

Compliance with national policy
of college examination centres
conducting examinations and
assessments (%)
Accurate M&E quarterly reports
submitted (n)

TVET COLLEGE
2016 PLANNED
TA R G E T

TVET COLLEGE
2016
ACHIEVEMENT

E X P L A N AT O R Y R E M A R K S

100%

100%

No non-compliance issues identified

4

4

Completed all 4 M&E reports in 2016.
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2.2 C
 ollege A chievement in
terms of E x p ected O utcomes
Report on achievement of sub-outcomes 2 and 4 targets:

NO

O U T C O M E I N D I C AT O R

1

Headcount enrolments (n)

2

2016/17
PLANNED
N AT I O N A L
TA R G E T

TVET COLLEGE
2016 PLANNED
TA R G E T

TVET
COLLEGE 2016
ACHIEVEMENT

829 000

12 286

11 554

Certification rates in TVET qualifications (%)

NC(V) L4: 40%
N3: 65%
N6: 45%

65%
29%
66%

41%
31%
54%

3

Compliance with national policy of college
examination centre/s conducting national
examinations and assessments (%)

100%

100%

100%

4

Throughput rate (%)

66%

30%

5

Students accommodated in public TVET
college accommodation (n)

863

579

6

Qualifying TVET students obtaining financial
assistance (n)

200 000

5 099

5 178

7

Funded NC(V) L4 students obtaining
qualification within stipulated time (%)

15%

54%

50%

8

Compliance to governance standards (%)

100%

100%

100%

9

TVET lecturers placed in workplaces for
specified periods (n)

20

0

7 371

WIL // 324
On course // 1 176
Occupational //
3 839

2135

1257

10

11

TVET students placed in workplaces/
industry for specified periods for work
exposure, experiential learning and/or
certification purposes (n)
Students completing artisan-related
programmes (n)

2.3 S
 trategy to deal with
under p erformance
2.3.1 Academic
2.3.1.1 Headcounts
The headcount target was 12 286 versus the actual
figure achieved of 11 554 which represents a 6%
decrease on what was projected for 2016. The NC(V)
Level 2 enrolment was the largest contributor to the decline. This has been a trend over a period of time.
It is therefore obvious that parents make decisions
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based on their perception of the qualification and its
challenges. In other words learners are rather advised
to remain in school and continue to matric due to the
fact that NC(V) is perceived by some to be more difficult
than the school equivalent of Grade 10; there is also
generally no need to apply for bursaries at schools and
no national examination either. In order to make up for
the decrease, the College intends moving forward,
to increase the Report 191, as well as its occupational
enrolments.

2.3.1.2 Academic results
NC(V) Level 4 certification rate
The College did not achieve its 2016 NC(V) Level 4
certification target of 65%. The actual achievement of
41%, means it is under target by 14%. The DHET NC(V)
Level 4 certification target for 2016/17 is 40% which
means it must set more realistic targets. The following
are some of the strategies adopted to improve
academic performance:
-C
 ampuses are to strengthen academic support to
improve retention and certification
- P rogramme managers and leaders must focus on
addressing student absenteeism
- Improve screening of placement in the various
programmes;
- P rioritising poorest performing subjects for specific
interventions
- C ampuses must emphasise the impact of the minimum
examination admission requirements in terms of
Internal Continuous Assessments (ICASS), as well as
that of Attendance to ALL students.
N6 certification rate
The target certification rate of 66% was not achieved,
but there was a definite improvement from the 2015
achievement of 49% to the 2016 achievement of 54%.
The 2016 actual certification rate was also higher than
the national certification target of 45%. There was a
distinct decrease in the retention rates on all the 3 levels
(N4 – N6) due to the implementation of the academic
performance and attendance examination admission
criteria. The improvement strategy is generally the same
as that above highlighted under the NC(V) Level 4 under
performance comments.
2.3.1.3 TVET lecturers placed in workplaces for
specified periods
In order to positively report on this item, the College
is now in the process of developing a policy to
support the strategy of having staff placed in industry.
There is placement happening in the Early Childhood
Programme where staff do visit and support learners in
the workplace, but the programmes where the biggest
needs exist need to be identified.
2.3.2 Residences
Boland College has residences at four of its five
campuses. During the first semester of 2016 the
residences could be utilised optimally for College
students. Accommodation and three meals per day
were provided for the students, although the NSFAS

subsidy covered only half of the real cost per resident.
Subsidising all the residence students has placed
severe financial strain on the College. Moreover,
the #feesmustfall movement also led to unrest in the
residences where students were dissatisfied with the
menu and quality of food. The College succeeded in
addressing the problems successfully within a relatively
short time-span. No further unrest was experienced
during the remainder of 2016. Unfortunately all NSFAS
allowances for residences were allocated during the
first semester. Subsequently the target set for students
in residences could not be reached in the second
semester of 2016.
2.3.3 Work Placement and Partnerships
Boland College (BC) has derived a strategy to source
host employers as near as possible to the student’s
residential area in order to alleviate the pressure of
transport and stipend costs. As BC strives to only place
academically successful students, it continuously
attempts to track and trace students (graduation
ceremony, bulk SMS, Facebook posts) whereby students
are encouraged to give BC their contact details before
exiting the system. BC has five campuses with an
active WIL clerk that is responsible for research, sourcing
of employers, marketing of students and placement into
industry. As BC’s mandate now includes placement of
occupational students, it is running the risk of the
hosting market becoming saturated. Taking into account
the geographical areas of its rural campuses, not all
employers are willing to host students, for various
reasons. Or there may not be suitable workplaces with
the required needs for placement – for instance small
businesses in rural areas do not have the capacity or
qualified mentors to assist any programme student as
stipulated by new memo instructions from DHET, should
a student wish to qualify for his/her National (N) diploma.
Subsequently the target set for students with regard to
placements and partnerships could not be reached.
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C

GOV ER N A NCE
01
CONSTITUTION OF THE
COLLEGE COUNCIL AND
GOVERNANCE STR UCTURES

Names of Council chairperson and members, as
well as their designated functions are listed below:

COLLE G E
COUNC IL

AU DI T & RI S K
COMMI TT EE

// Bakker, J (Support Staff Representative)

// Cloete, HCA // Myburgh, EC // Olivier, A (resigned)

// Bleazard, DK (Chairperson) // Cloete, HCA

// V d Merwe, HA (Chairperson)

// Kabanyane, GC // Landiwe, Z (SRC President)
// Lingela, S (Vice Chairperson) // MacMaster, LLM
// Matolengwe, N // Malgas, S (SRC Vice President)
// Myburgh, EC (Principal) // Olivier, A (resigned)
// Peters, E (VP: E&T) // Pietersen, VRF // Plaatjies, D

F I NANCI AL
COMMI TT EE

(Educator Staff Representative) // V d Merwe, HA

// Bakker, J // Bleazard, DK // Myburgh, EC

// Van Louw, CL

// V d Merwe, HA (Chairperson)

HU MAN R E S O U R C E S
COM MI T E E

P LANNI NG &
RES OU RCES COMM ITEE

// Bakker, J // Bleazard, DK // Cloete, HCA

// Bleazard, DK (Chairperson) // Lingela, S

// Matolengwe, N // Myburgh, EC // Olivier, A

// Myburgh, EC // Olivier, A // Peters, E // Plaatjies, D

// Plaatjies, D // Van Louw, CL (Chairperson)

No new appointments were made during 2016 in
ter ms of Sections 10(4) and 10(6) of the CET Act.
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Perfor mance in ter ms of its statutor y
functions, explained in Section 10(1)-(3)
of the CET Act.

Number of meetings held
and for what reason:
COLLEGE COUNCIL
7 April 2016 // 23 June 2016
29 September 2016 // 6 December 2016
Special meetings
30 March 2016 // 26 May 2016 // 25 October 2016
EXCO OF COLLEGE COUNCIL
13 January 2016 // 9 March 2016

Boland College had a fully functional College Council in
2016. Four Council meetings were held. The Committees
of the Council: Finance, Audit and Risk, Human
Resources, ICT and Infrastructure, met once a term
and in doing so rendered support to the College
management to achieve the goals of Boland College.
It became known that Boland College was the second
college to submit its audited financial statements for
2016 to the Department of Higher Education and
Training.
The Boland College Council performs all its functions,
including the review of the Standard Statute, which are
necessary to govern a public college, subject to the Act
and any applicable national or provincial law.
The Council, with the concurrence of the academic
board developed a strategic plan for the College that:

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
25 February 2016 // 26 May 2016 // 2 June 2016
25 August 2016 // 27 October 2016
FINANCIAL COMMITTEE
25 February 2016 // 26 May 2016 // 25 August 2016
27 October 2016 // 6 December 2016
PLANNING & RESOURCES COMMITTEE
12 February 2016 // 3 June 2016
2 September 2016 // 3 November 2016
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
24 February 2016 // 25 May 2016
31 August 2016 // 19 October 2016

- incorporates the mission, vision, goals and planning
for funding of the College
- a ddresses past imbalances as well as gender and
disability matters
- a dheres to safety measures for a safe learning
environment for students, lecturers and support staff
and these are approved by the Member of the
Executive Council
- d etermines the language policy of the public
College, subject to the approval of the Member of
the Executive Council
- e nsures that the College complies with accreditation
requirements necessary to provide learning
programmes in terms of standards and qualifications
as registered on the National Qualifications Framework.
The Council, after consultation with the Student
Representative Council, makes provision for a suitable
structure to advise on policy for student support services
within the College.
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03
RISK
MANAGEMENT

02
COLLEGE PERFORMANCE
IN TERMS OF COMMUNITIES
IT SERVES
Boland College (BC) had 20 partners for occupational
delivery and 60 host employers during 2016.
Through partnerships with industry, government, SETAs,
NGOs, international collaboration and committee
businesses, BC was able to identify social and economic
shortcomings. These needs were identified in the region
and the College is assisting in fulfilling these needs by
educating individuals and communities in order to equip
them with necessary skills.
BC recognised the input of its strategic partners for
funding and hosting of its students. Regular stakeholder
meetings and business breakfast sessions were
arranged to share needs and best practices. BC
assessed the quality of training, client surveys and
municipal questionnaires were initiated, as well as
online participation, forum meetings and the Western
Cape SETA Cluster Monitoring.
As the economic environment changes and new
technology is introduced, BC uses innovative ways to
prepare for change.

B oland C ollege
R isk M anagement S trategy
- B oland College had a fully established and functional
enterprise-wide risk management process within the
College. The Risk Management Committee had
overseen the risk process. A risk plan was loaded on the
QMS for easy access and utilisation by all staff.
- E ach Vice-Principal was responsible for the
management of risks in her/his portfolio. It was
their responsibility to discuss the risks of the various
departments at their meetings and they were also
responsible to continually assess the risks and develop
mitigation measures.
- T he top strategic risks were tabled at each EXCO
meeting to discuss.
- T he Boland College Risk Management Policy is in line
with the requirements of the King Code on Corporate
Governance for South Africa 2009 (King III).
- A formal, systematic annual risk assessment was
conducted across the entire organisation. The Risk
Register was discussed and updated in its entirety.
New risks were identified, existing risks were amended,
and risk and control ratings together with risk responses,
were updated.
- T he chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
discussed identified strategic and operational risks at
Council meetings.
The risks Boland College had to contend with were
managed in a structured manner in 2016.
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04
REPORTS BY COMMITEES
OF COUNCIL
4 . 1 A udit & R isk C ommittee R E P O R T
We are pleased to present our report for the financial
year ended December 2016.
Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility
The Audit & Risk Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 25 (1)
(c) of the Further Education and Training Act, Act 16 of
2006 as amended by “implementing internal audit and
risk management systems which are not inferior to the
standards contained in the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999)”. The Audit & Risk Committee
has adopted an appropriate formal Audit & Risk Charter,
has regulated its affairs in compliance with the Charter
and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained
therein.
The Effectiveness of Internal Control
We reviewed the results of Internal Audit engagements,
which were based on the risk assessments conducted in
the College.

The areas for improvements, as noted by Internal Audit
during the performance of their work, were agreed to
by Audit & Risk Committee and were as follows:
-

Governance
Annual Financial Statements
Human Resource Management
NSFAS
Information Communication Technology
Property, Plant and Equipment
Supply Chain Management
Finance
Supporting documentation

The Audit & Risk Committee continues to monitor the
implementation of agreed actions on an ongoing basis.
In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report
The College reports monthly to DHET regarding the
status of the Income and Expenditure. The Audit & Risk
Committee is satisfied with the current content and
quality of the quarterly financial and performance
reports prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer
of the College during the year under review.

During 2016 the implementation of audit action plans
were prioritised and monitored on a regular basis and
corrective actions were taken timely where insufficient
progress was made. The audit action plans were based
on External Audit Findings of the College, Auditor
General’s Findings as provided by DHET, Internal Audit
Findings and Risks according to the Risk Register.
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Evaluation of Financial Statements

External Auditor’s Report

The Audit & Risk Committee has:

We have reviewed the College’s implementation plan
for audit issues raised in the previous year and we are
satisfied that the matters have been addressed as
reported by the External Auditor. The Audit & Risk
Committee has met with College to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues emanating from the regulatory
audit. The Audit & Risk Committee concurs and accepts
the conclusions of the External Auditor on the annual
financial statements.

-R
 eviewed and discussed the audited annual financial
statements as presented in the annual report
-R
 eviewed the External auditor management report
and management’s responses thereto
-C
 onsidered changes to the accounting policies
and practices and where applicable, that these are
reported in the annual financial statements
Internal Audit
Internal audit has been effective in completing its plan.
The Audit & Risk Committee remains concerned about
the adequacy of Internal Audit Resources to ensure
complete coverage of high risk areas. The combined
assurance approach will continue to be applied, to
effectively focus limited Internal Audit resources.
Risk Management
The College has taken responsibility and ownership
for the implementation of the Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) methodology and function
and the process is reviewed on a quarterly basis
by the Audit & Risk Committee.
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Appreciation
The Audit & Risk Committee wishes to express its
appreciation to the Management of the College
and for the cooperation and information they have
provided to enable us to fulfil our mandate and to
compile this report.

H A VAN D E R M E R W E //
Audit & Risk Committee Chairperson
11 September 2017

4 . 2 F inance C ommittee
The Financial Committee is fully constituted and
chaired by an external Council member. Four quarterly
meetings were held, as well as one special meeting to
approve the draft budget for 2017. The Committee
had received fifteen financial management policies
from the DHET. These policies were evaluated by the
Committee and recommended for approval to the
Council. The Committee oversaw and approved College
budget submissions, deviations and quarterly revisions
to ensure that the required outputs were specific and
consistent with the desired outcomes. Special attention
was given to the project proposal made to the National
Skills Fund. The Committee strictly adhered to the scope
of responsibilities as stated in the terms of reference for
the Financial Committee.

4 . 3 H uman R esources C ommittee
The Human Resources Committee oversees the
conditions of employment of Boland College appointed
staff. Both the chairperson and vice-chairperson are
external members of Council, in compliance with the
CET Act. The Committee met quarterly and meetings
were well attended. Policies received from the
Department of Higher Education and Training were
perused and recommended to Council for adoption.
The functions of the Committee included the
recommendation of employment of Council staff
members and recommending termination of services
of Council staff members relating to dismissal cases
such as conduct, capacity and operational requirements
(retrenchments). Moreover, the Committee also
reviewed strategic goals, objectives and action plans
with regard to the management of human resources
and recommended to the Council proposals with
regard to salary levels, fringe benefits, increases, salary
negotiations, incentive programmes, salary progression
and recognition of staff (Excellence and Long Service
Awards). The HR Committee also recommended
approval of applications received for conducting private
work and reviewed the employment equity targets and
affirmative action measures of Boland College.

4 . 4 Planning and
R esource C ommittee
The Planning and Resource Committee met quarterly.
Three external Council members were members of the
Committee. All physical resources and information
communication technology matters were discussed by
the Committee. These included full plans and progress
on infrastructure projects, as well as five year planning
for infrastructure needs. During the third term the terms
of reference were revised in order to be in line with the
DHET policy and the name of the committee changed
to the Planning and Resources Committee (PLANCO).
The scope of the Committee was extended to “perform
such duties as the College Council may from time to time
delegate to it and to assist Council and Management in
the planning, monitoring and evaluation of the College’s
strategic plan and evaluation of infrastructure and ICT
resources”.
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05
ACADEMIC
B OA R D R E P O R T

The Academic Board is also responsible for:
- Advising the Council on a code of conduct and rules
- Conditions applicable to any scholarships – financial aid
- The Academic Board may establish committees

The functions and powers of the Academic Board were
set out in the Continuing Education and Training Act,
No: 16 of 2006 (as amended). Boland College reviewed
the terms of reference of the Academic Board in 2016.

The Academic Board is accountable to
the College Council for:
-A
 ll teaching, learning, research and academic
functions of the College
- T he academic functions of the College and
promoting the participation of women and the
disabled in its learning programmes
-E
 stablishing internal academic monitoring and quality
promotion mechanisms
-E
 nsuring that the requirements of accreditation to
provide learning against standards and qualifications
registered in the National Qualifications Framework
are met
-P
 erforming such other functions as may be delegated
or assigned to it by the Council.
- T he Academic Board is responsible for the planning,
organisation and supervision of programme delivery
and examinations.

- The Council determines admission requirements
- T he Academic Board reports to the Council on: reports,
research projects and recommendations
- T he Academic Board does not have decision making
authority, but submits recommendations for approval
to the Council

The Academic Board of Boland College
consisted of:
-

The Principal
The Vice-Principal or Vice-Principals
Members of Council
Campus Managers
Senior Academic Manager
Programme Manager
Members of the Student Representative Council
Lecturing Staff
Head of Department
Programme Manager
Lecturing Staff represented on the Council
Quality Manager
Student Support Manager

The Academic Board meets quarterly
- T he Principal is the chairperson of the Academic Board
who ensured that four meetings per annum were held
in 2016.
- T he input of the Council members, academic staff and
student representatives contributed to the success of
the deliberations during the meeting.
- T he Vice-Principal: Education and Training reported
achievements and challenges of education and
training at each meeting.
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06
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE
COUNCIL REPORT

The year 2016 started off as a very challenging one
with student protests on four of Boland College’s five
campuses. Students in Paarl, Stellenbosch and
Worcester expressed their discontent about the new
residence management plan. The student protest
action resulted in the disruption of service delivery on
campuses. Through these student protests, student
leaders learned to negotiate in the best interest of
their student communities with the College’s executive
management. Various consultative meetings took
place with student leaders and ordinary residence
students which resulted in a review of the residence
management plan. An amicable resolve was found
for all parties involved.
Students of Strand Campus, later also followed by
students of other campuses, at the same time aired their
discontent about the distribution of NSFAS allowances.
Student leaders (SRC) and their role as the students’
voice were challenged as protesting students elected
new student leaders to represent them. The SRC
battled for recognition and ensured students that
representing them was their only objective. The SRC,
through student parliament, opened communication
channels with student communities, encouraging them
to be respectful when voicing their discontent. These
protests led to the SRC demanding more open,
transparent and upfront communication with students
by Management. Officials of the DHET and NSFAS were
invited to student gatherings, in order to ensure that
students’ questions were answered.

The SRC attended two national SAFETSA conferences to
ensure that the voices of rural students, who were posing
tough questions and demanding nothing but transparent
leadership, were heard.
They were also invited to NSFAS 2017 New StudentCentred roll out national meeting. In this way Boland
College students were not left in the cold and
attendance of the meeting very much improved
relations between NSFAS and student representatives.
The approach of Boland College to student
development leadership initiatives is unique. Rather than
focus on development initiatives at the start of the term
of office of student leaders, the student leadership
development initiatives focus on providing student
leaders with support throughout their term of office.
Boland TVET College is of the firm view that student
leadership development initiatives are important in
providing student leaders with the necessary support
and skills for effective leadership that is relevant to the
current context, as well as inclusive in approach.
Student leadership development not only assists student
leaders through an experiential approach that is
grounded in a theoretical framework, but it also
communicates to student leaders that they are valued,
appreciated and considered integral to the governing
structures at Boland TVET College.

Through various consultative meetings between the
SRC and executive management student protests at
campuses were ended and the academic calendar was
restored to normal. Outstanding student residence fees
were slashed by 50%, as BC agreed to carry the other
50%. Student representation on the Central Financial
Aid Committee was increased, ensuring that all
campuses had a student representative on this
important committee.
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Therefore, the visit to Parliament in April of 2016 added
further value to the development of the SRC members as
they experienced first-hand the functions of Parliament,
how it works in general and how a law is passed. It was
indeed a great experience.
As part of their development, the SRC Central Executive
Committee was fortunate enough to have sessions with
a consultant, who also visited the various campuses and
their teams. She did some project planning with them
and also addressed matters such as communication
and time management.
In the year under review we, together with the
SRC Central Executive Committee, reviewed our
constitution and the guidelines to carry out SRC
responsibilities according to each portfolio. Some
changes were made in order to fit the needs of our
SRC on the various campuses.
The election process of the SRC for 2017 started in May
2016 with the opening of nominations. All elections were
conducted by IEC trained officials, ensuring that the
election of the Student Representative Council (SRC)
was fair, transparent and done in a democratic manner.
The election of the new SRC members were able to take
place without any disruption in August 2016.
The newly elected SRC members attended a training
camp at the end of September 2016. Topics that were
workshopped included the mandate of the SRC, the
CET Act, effective leadership, communication with
management, project and time management, to name
but a few. The successful inauguration of SRC 2017 took
place in October 2016 at Paarl campus. On this occasion
the newly elected student leaders signed their code of
conduct and received their official SRC blazers.
The urgent request by students to be afforded a place
to study and to have access to computers and other
materials/resources, was answered in October 2016
when the College management announced that all five
campuses would have an Open Learning Centre (OLC)
at the start of the new academic year in 2017. These
resources would be open and freely accessible to all
registered students, with the objective of increasing
students’ academic success rate.
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02
C O U N C I L’ S
RESPONSIBILITIES
A N D A P P R O VA L

The council is required by the Continuing Education
and Training Act No.16 of 2006, as amended, to
maintain adequate accounting records and is
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial
statements and related financial information included in
this report. It is the responsibility of council to ensure that
the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs
of the College as at the end of the financial year and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with GRAP. The AuditorGeneral was engaged to express an independent
opinion on the financial statements and was given
unrestricted access to all financial records, related data
and relevant parties.

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Standards
of GRAP including any interpretations,
guidelines and directives issued by the ASB
and in the manner required by the Minister
of Higher Education and Training.
The financial statements are based on appropriate
accounting policies consistently applied and supported
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
Council acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible
for the system of internal financial control established
by the College and places considerable importance
on maintaining a strong control environment, which
includes the safeguarding of assets and compliance
with relevant legislation. To enable the council to meet
these responsibilities, the council sets standards for
internal control aimed at reducing risk in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation
of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting and other procedures, and
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the College and employees and
management are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the college’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the college is on identifying, assessing,
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across
the college. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the College endeavours to minimise it by
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The council accepts its responsibility to ensure that
the College is managed in a responsible manner,
considering the interest of all stakeholders, including
the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communities
and creditors. Responsible management entails,
inter alia, compliance with applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements, including risk management.
The council is of the opinion, based on the information
and explanations given by management, that the
system of internal control provides reasonable
assurance that the financial records may be relied on
for the preparation of the financial statements and
that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. However,
any system of internal financial control can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or deficit.
The council has reviewed the College’s cash flow
forecast for the year to 31 December 2017 and, in the
light of this review and the current financial position,
it is satisfied that the College has, or has access to,
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.
The College is dependent on the DHET for continued
funding of operations in line with the annual DHET
programme funding allocation. The financial statements
are prepared on the basis that the College is a going
concern and that the DHET has neither the intention nor
the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of
the College’s operations.
The Auditor-General is responsible for independently
auditing and reporting on the College’s financial
statements and his report is presented with these
financial statements.

The financial statements set out on page
9 to 57 were approved by the council on
03 August 2017 and were signed on its
behalf by:

DAV I D B L E AZAR D // Council Chairperson
03 August 2017
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R eport of the
A uditor - G eneral

Report of the auditor-general to the Minister of
Higher Education and Training and the Council of
Boland College.

Report on the audit of
the financial statements
Opinion

01I have audited the financial statements of the
Boland TVET College set out on pages 9 to 57, which
comprise the statement of financial positions as at
31 December 2016, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, and
cash flow statements for the year then ended, as well
as the notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

02In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in

all material respects, the financial position of the Boland
TVET College as at 31 December 2016, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with South African Standards of General
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP)
and the requirements of the Continuing Education and
Training Act, 2006 (Act No. 16 of 2006) (CET Act), as
amended.
Basis for opinion

03I conducted my audit in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibility under those standards are further
described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of
the report.

04I am independent of the college in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code.

05I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

05

Emphasis of matter

06I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

07As disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements,

the corresponding figures for 31 December 2015 have
been restated as a result of an error in the financial
statements of the College at, and for the year ended,
31 December 2016.
Other matter

08I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Previous year audited by a predecessor auditor

09The financial statements of the previous year were
audited by a predecessor auditor in terms of section 4(3)
of the Public Audit Act (PAA) on 31 May 2016.
Responsibilities of Council for the financial statements
The council is responsible for the preparation and fair
10

presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with South African Standards of General Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Continuing Education and Training
Act. 2006 (Act No 16 of 2006) (CET Act), as amended,
and for such internal control as the council determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

11
In preparing the financial statements, the council is

responsible for assessing the Boland TVET College’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters relating to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
council either intends to liquidate the college or to ease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Other information
Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

12My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregated, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

13A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements is included in the annexure to
the auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of
the annual performance report

14The college is not required to prepare a report on its

performance against predetermined objectives as it
does not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and such
reporting is also not required in terms of the entity’s
specific legislation.

The Boland TVET College council is responsible for
17

the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report which
includes the general information and the council’s
responsibilities and approval. The other information
does not include the financial statements and the
auditor’s report thereon.

18My opinion on the financial statements and findings on

compliance with the legislation do not cover the other
information and I do not express an audit opinion or an
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

19In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or my knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed on the other
information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, I concluded that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, I am required to report the fact.

Internal control deficiencies

20I considered internal control relevant to my audit of

the financial statements and compliance with CET Act;
however, my objective was not to express any form of
assurance thereon. I did not identify any significant
deficiencies in internal control.

Report on audit of
compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope

15In accordance with the PAA and the general notice

Cape Town
30 June 2017

issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report
material findings on the compliance of the college
with specific matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather
evidence to express assurance.

16I did not identify any instances of material non-

compliance with selected specific requirements of
the CET Act.

06

Annexure: Auditor-general’s
responsibility for the audit

01As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit
of the financial statements, and on the college’s compliance with
respect to the selected subject matters per the CET Act.
Financial statements

02In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements
as described in the auditor’s report, I also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk in not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
-o
 btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the college’s internal control.
-e
 valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the council.
-c
 onclude on the appropriateness of the council’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions,
that may cast significant doubt on the Boland TVET College’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the
material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate to modify
the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on
the information available to me at the date of the auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause a college to cease
to continue as a going concern.
-e
 valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

07

Communication with those charged with governance

03I communicate with the council regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that I
identify during my audit.

04

I also confirm to the council that I have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing
on my independence and here applicable, related
safeguards.
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S tatement of
F inancial P osition

NOTE
ASSETS
Current assets

2016
R

2015
R

34,932,055

54,398,156

9,464,059
14,430,149
10,834,000
203,847

35,585,842
8,696,442
8,457,000
1,658,872

237,065,910

233,345,605

237,065,910

233,345,605

271,997,965

287,743,761

28,136,478

34,520,294

12,224,373
233,236
14,946,855
732,014

12,103,243
164,869
21,610,837
641,345

544,191

1,276,205

544,191

1,276,205

28,680,668

35,796,499

Net assets

243,317,297

251,947,262

Accumulated surplus

243,317,297

251,947,262

T otal net assets and liabilities

271,997,965

287,743,761

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including transfers
Inventories

3
4
5
6

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

7

T otal assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Provisions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Borrowings

8
9
10
11

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
T otal liabilities

09

11

05
S tatement of
F inancial P E R F O R M A N C E

NOTE
REVENUE
Revenue from exchange transactions
Tuition and related fees
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Rental of facilities and equipment
Investment income
Other income

12
13
14
15
16

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Government grants and subsidies
Public contributions and donations
Other transfers and sponsorships

17
18
19

T otal R E V E N U E

2016
R

2015
R

86,166,856

91,587,771

79,183,814
195,436
3,066,865
1,788,008
1,932,733

85,799,359
45,586
1,765,898
2,829,463
1,147,464

125,312,672

117,705,722

124,047,483
709,756
555,433

117,490,355
215,367

211,479,528

209,293,492

(133,308,086)
(1,486,133)
(8,165,641)
(9,600,210)
(7,618,426)
(7,220,152)
(6,375,514)
(6,775,977)
(3,908,193)
(925,342)
(4,672,723)
(665,791)
(444,296)
(11,003,420)
(2,151,537)
(6,946,576)
(1,599,121)
(2,314,307)
(215,829)
(4,705,162)

(125,426,716)
(1,375,802)
(10,838,332)
(12,791,271)
(6,592,740)
(7,298,226)
(9,756,203)
(7,254,637)
(4,004,069)
(1,121,021)
(4,251,803)
(457,519)
(418,964)
(10,212,691)
(2,472,993)
(7,862,882)
(1,942,274
(1,358,092)
(294,118)
(6,100,854)

(220,102,434)

(221,831,207)

(7,059)

81,837

(7,059)

81,837

(8,629,965)

(12,455,877)

EXPENSES
Employee related costs and DHET management fee
Impairment of debtors
Depreciation and amortisation
Grants, bursaries and subsidies paid
Books and learning materials
Programme Consumables
Students residence meals
Repairs and maintenance
Operating lease expense
Travel, accommodation and entertainment
Security
Professional services
External audit fees
Municipal services
Marketing
Telephone, postage, internet, network and communication costs
Staff development and training
Printing and stationery
Finance costs
Other expenses

20
21
22
23
24
24
25
26

27

28
29

T otal E X P E N S E S

Other gains/losses
Gain/(Loss) on sale of assets
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR
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S tatement of
C hanges in N et
A ssets

NOTE

A C C U M U L AT E D F U N D S
A C C U M U L AT E D
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
R

Balance at 01 January 2014 as previously reported

T O TA L : N E T A S S E T S
R

257,583,608

257,583,608

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

6,819,531

6,819,531

Balance at 01 January 2015

264,403,139

264,403,139

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

(12,455,877)

(12,455,877)

Balance at 01 January 2016

251,947,262

251,947,262

(8,629,965)

(8,629,965)

243,317,297

243,317,297

Trade and other payables from exchange
Balance at 31 December 2016

11

07
CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

NOTE
C ash flows from operating activities
Receipts

2016
R

2015
R

109,026,909

122,091,098

72,103,848
195,436
3,066,865
1,788,008
28,341,053
709,756
2,821,942

77,804,533
1,593,630

(122,614,342)

(139,402,493)

(52,501,825)
(65,156,570)
(215,829)
(4,740,119)

(56,708,259)
(76,299,261)
(294,118)
(6,100,854)

(13,587,433)

(13,880,394)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment

(11,904,051)
11,047

(10,309,110)
8,476

Net cash flows from investing activities

(11,893,005)

(10,300,634)

Repayment of long-term borrowings
Movement in operating lease liablility

(641,345)
-

(563,055)
(262,363)

Net cash flows from financing activities

(641,345)

(825,418)

(26,121,783)

(25,006,446)

35,585,842

64,023,289

9,464,059

35,585,842

Tuition and related fees
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest
Government grants and subsidies
Public contributions and donations
Other Receipts
Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs
Other payments

N et cash flows from operating activities

31

2,829,463
38,500,641
215,367
1,147,464

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

3
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08
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.01. P
 resentation of Financial Statements
and Basis of preparation

1.04. S ignificant judgements and sources of
estimation uncertainty

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in the manner
prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and
Training in terms of the Continuing Education and
Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended.

The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions
is inherent to the process of preparing financial s
tatements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions
affect the amounts presented in the financial
statements. Uncertainties about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset or liability in future periods.

These financial statements have been prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance
with the historical cost convention as the basis of
measurement, unless specified otherwise.
In the absence of an approved and effective Standard
of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions,
events or conditions were developed in accordance
with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with
Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses were not offset,
except where offsetting is either required or permitted by
a Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies are
disclosed below.
The presentation and classification and these
accounting policies are consistent with the previous
year, except for the changes set out in note 37.
1.02. Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in South
African Rand, which is the functional currency of the
College.
1.03. Going concern assumption
Management and council have made the assessment
that the entity is a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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Judgements
In the process of applying these accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements
that may have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
Programme funding
Programme funding accrues in the College’s financial
year, as specified by the CET Act and the Funding Norms,
in so far as the definition and recognition criteria of an
asset are met . No claw back is applicable.
Programme funding is allocated to the College by
DHET in terms of the CET Act and the National Norms
and Standards for Funding of TVET Colleges and is
determined by the estimated Full Time Equivalent
Students (FTEs) of the college. The allocation is done
based on the projected FTEs for the year and if the
college fails to register the projected FTEs, a portion
of the programme funding can be clawed back in the
following year.

The programme funding is allocated by DHET during
their financial year which is from April to March, but to
the extent that all the conditions have been met by
year end, for the College the funds pertain to the
College academic and financial year which is from
January to December.
A portion of the programme funding is paid via Persal
by DHET, directly to the DHET staff placed at the College.
Where the funds retained by DHET to pay the salaries of
the staff placed at the College have not been fully
utilised to pay these salaries by the DHET year end
(i.e. 31 March 2017 for the College’s 2016 financial year),
DHET transfers the unexpended funds back to the
College provided that the College applies for the refund
and that the refund is approved by DHET. The Funding
Norms indicates that the refund will be paid under the
following circumstances:
a. T he funds will be utilised by the college for nonremuneration staff costs such as staff development,
within a staff development plan recommended
collectively by staff to the Academic Board for
recommendation to the Council of the TVET College
concerned and finally approved by the DirectorGeneral of DHET

salaries through Persal and as the college had met at
least 97% of its enrolment targets, the full amount of
allocated programme funding accrued to the College
by 31 December 2016 and was recognised in 2016.
The transactions and amounts are disclosed in Note 17.
Employee related costs and DHET management fee

b. S ubject to a motivated application from the
TVET college, the funds will be used to defray
remuneration of staff where such staff would have
been remunerated by DHET in the financial year
concerned
c. S ubject to any conditions that may be determined by
DHET policy on utilisation of such funds, if such policy
is determined.
At year end the Boland College had achieved at
least 97% of its enrolment target and no claw back
can therefore be applied to the programme funding in
this regard.

The College’s staff consists of two groups:
a. E mployees and management staff appointed
on Persal
b. Employees appointed in the College payroll
In terms of the CET Act and DHET Circular 1 of 2015,
with effect from 1 April 2015, all non-management
personnel of the College appointed on Persal migrated
to DHET and became DHET employees. For the period 1
January to 31 March 2015, the management personnel
were already DHET employees and nonmanagement
personnel were still employees of the college.

The portion of the programme funding retained by
DHET for Persal salaries accrues to the College when the
expenses are incurred by DHET via Persal, or when one
of the conditions specified in the Funding Norms has
been met, whichever is earlier.
The Funding Norms that were legally applicable to
the 2016 financial year of the College did not contain
any conditions for the remittance of the unspent
portion of the programme funding retained to pay

14

For the period 1 Januar y to 31 March 2015:
Management and other personnel appointed on
Persal were remunerated by the provincial Department
of Education, via Persal, on behalf of DHET, using College
funds. Management personnel were not college
employees and their remuneration cannot be classified
as an employee expense of the college and is therefore
classified as “DHET management fee”. The non
management personnel were College employees
and their remuneration for this period is classified as
an employee expense.

- T he purpose for which the property is used i.e. if for
education purposes then the property is not regarded
as an investment property.
- If the property is held for the purpose of generating
rental income or to appreciate in value, then the
property is regarded as an investment property.
- If other assets used in conjunction with the property to
provide education, then the property is not regarded
as an investment property.

For the period from 1 April 2015 onwards:
All employees appointed on Persal and placed at the
College were DHET employees and the related expense
is classified as “DHET management fee”.
Campuses or other property used and controlled,
but not owned by the College
Certain campuses and other property are used by
the College and are not registered in the name of
the College. The lack of legal ownership could affect
whether or not the college has control over the campus.
Where, inter alia, beneficial control exists, the campus
in question is recognised, measured and included in
the financial statements as either property, plant and
equipment (campuses or other property) or investment
property (other property) in terms of the definition of an
asset as per the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements and the definition
of Property, Plant and Equipment in GRAP 17 Property,
Plant and Equipment or Investment Property in GRAP 16
Investment Property.
Classification of land and buildings as property,
plant and equipment or investment property
Judgement is needed to determine whether a
property qualifies as investment property. The College
developed the following criteria so that it can exercise
that judgement consistently in accordance with the
definition of investment property:

- L and held for a currently undetermined future use is
regarded as investment property.
Boland College utilises all their land and buildings, plant
and equipment for Education and Training purposes.
Classification of non-current, non-financial assets as
cash-generating or non cash-generating
Judgement is needed to determine whether an asset is
cash-generating or non cash-generating. The College
developed the following criteria so that it can exercise
that judgement consistently in accordance with the
definitions:
- The purpose for which the asset was acquired.
Boland College assets were acquired for education
purposes, therefore all assets are regarded as non
cash-generating.

Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience,
information currently available to management,
assumptions, and other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates
are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates
that are not due to errors are processed in the period
of the review and applied prospectively.
In the process of applying the College’s accounting
policies the following estimates, were made:
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Debt impairment
The College assesses its financial assets for impairment
at the end of each financial year. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in
surplus or deficit, the College makes judgements as
to whether there is observable data indicating a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a financial asset.
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and
obsolete inventory
Management wrote inventory down to the lower of cost
or net realisable value. The write down is included in the
surplus or deficit. For inventory consumed in the supply
of services, management have made an estimate of
the current replacement cost of such inventory and as
appropriate have reduced the carrying amount
accordingly. Refer to Note 6 for the carrying amounts
of inventories affected.

Useful lives and residual values of assets, depreciation
and amortisation
The College’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values of all non-current,
non-financial assets. These estimates are based on
industry norms and then adjusted to be college
specific. Management determines at the reporting date
whether there are any indications that the College’s
expectations of useful lives or residual values have
changed from previous estimates. Where indications
exist the expected useful lives or residual values are
revised accordingly.

In testing for non-cash-generating assets, estimates
are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost,
restoration cost, or service units of the asset, depending
on the nature of the impairment and the availability
of information.

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets respectively
are determined with reference to the useful lives and
residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives
and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected
condition at the end of the period of use, its current
use, expected future use and the college’s expectations
about the availability of finance to replace the asset at
the end of its useful life. In evaluating how the condition
and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual
value management considers the impact of technology
and minimum service requirements of the assets.
Generally, depreciation is accrued over the useful
lives of assets on a straight-line basis.

Provisions

Effective interest rate

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the estimated future outflows required to settle
the obligation.

The College uses an appropriate interest rate, taking
into account guidance provided in GRAP, and applying
professional judgement to the specific circumstances,
to discount future cash flows, to the present value of the
item being discounted.

Non-financial asset Impairment

Refer to Note 9 for the carrying amounts of provisions
affected.
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Fair value determination of properties
(excluding heritage assets)
In determining the fair value of investment property
(and/or property, plant and equipment ) donated or
acquired for no consideration, the College applies a
valuation methodology to determine the fair value of the
properties based on:
- The Fair Value of the property.
Where the above information is reliably determinable
the College determines an approximation of fairvalue of
the asset as described in Directive 7 The Application of
Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of GRAP.
1.05. B
 iological assets that form part of an
agricultural activity
Depreciation is provided on biological assets that
form part of an agricultural activity where fair value
cannot be determined, to write down the cost, less
residual value, by equal instalments over their useful
lives. Refer to Note 7 for the estimated useful lives.
Not applicable to Boland College.
1.06. Investment property
Investment property is initially recognised at cost.
Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Where investment property is acquired through a
non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as
at the date of acquisition.
Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less
estimated residual value by equal installments over
the useful life of the property. Refer to Note 7 for the
estimated useful lives.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
investment property is the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of
retirement or disposal.
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Compensation from third parties for investment property
that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the compensation becomes
receivable.
Not applicable to Boland College.
Deemed cost
When the College initially recognises an asset using the
Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets using either
cost or fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition
cost). Where the accounting for assets is incomplete at
the start of the reporting year as the acquisition cost of
an asset is not available at that time, acquisition cost is
measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the
date the college adopted the Standards of GRAP (the
measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as the
fair value of an asset at the measurement date.
Not applicable to Boland College.

1.07. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment include:
-

Land
Buildings
Vehicles
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Furniture and fittings
Computer Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring
the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an
item of property, plant and equipment ceases when
the item is in the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which
are expected to be used for more than one period
are included in property, plant and equipment. In
addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which
can only be used in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment are accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of
continuing use of an item of property, plant and
equipment and which meet the recognition criteria
above are included as a replacement in the cost of
the item of property, plant and equipment. Any
remaining inspection costs from the previous
inspection are derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
the straight line basis over their expected useful lives
to their estimated residual value. Refer to Note 7 for
the estimated useful lives.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is
acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
assets, or a combination of assets and non-monetary
assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair
value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was
not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying
amount of the asset(s) given up.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located is also included in the cost of property, plant
and equipment, where the College is obligated to incur
such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a
result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes
other than the production of inventories.
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At reporting date it is assessed whether there are
any indications that the College’s expectations
of useful lives or residual values have changed
from previous estimates. Where indications exist
the expected useful lives or residual values are
revised accordingly.
Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is
recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is
included in the carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment is
included in surplus or deficit when the item is
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item.
Deemed cost
When the College initially recognises an asset
using the Standards of GRAP, it measures such
assets using either cost or fair value at the date
of acquisition (acquisition cost). Where the
accounting for assets is incomplete at the
start of the reporting year as the acquisition
cost of an asset is not available at that time,
acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate
value (deemed cost) at the date the
College adopted the Standards of GRAP
(the measurement date). Deemed cost is
determined as the fair value of an asset at
the measurement date.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through
a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost
at the date of acquisition is measured at its fair
value as at that date.
For internally generated intangible assets,
expenditure on research (or on the research
phase of an internal project) is recognised as
an expense when it is incurred. An intangible
asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project)
is recognised when:

Intangible assets are initially measured at
cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so
that it will be available for use or sale.
- there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
- there is an ability to use or sell it.
- it will generate probable future economic
benefits or service potential.
- t here are available technical, financial and other
resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset.
- t he expenditure attributable to the asset during
its development can be measured reliably.

The College assesses the probability of expected
future economic benefits or service potential
using reasonable and supportable assumptions

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses.

1.08. Intangible assets
Boland College does not have intangible assets.
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that represent management’s best estimate of
the set of economic conditions that will exist
over the useful life of the asset.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an
intangible asset.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible
assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values.
Refer to Note 7 for the estimated useful lives.
The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.
Deemed cost

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset
is expected to generate net cash inflows or service
potential. Amortisation is not provided for these
intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over
their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date. Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset
with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As
a result the asset is tested for impairment and the
remaining carrying amount is amortised over its
useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing
titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are
not recognised as intangible assets.

When the College initially recognises an asset using the
Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets using either
cost or fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition
cost). Where the accounting for assets is incomplete at
the start of the reporting year as the acquisition cost of
an asset is not available at that time, acquisition cost is
measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the
date the College adopted the Standards of GRAP (the
measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as the
fair value of an asset at the measurement date.
1.09 Heritage assets
Boland College does not have heritage assets.
Heritage assets are initially measured at cost.
Subsequent measurement is at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Heritage assets are
not depreciated. Where a heritage asset is acquired
through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is
measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Where the College acquires a heritage asset, or assets,
in exchange for a non monetary asset, the cost of the
acquired item is the fair value of the asset given up,
unless the fair value of the asset received is more
clearly evident. If the fair value neither items is reliably
measurable, the cost of the asset received is measured
at the carrying value of the asset given up.
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1.10 Financial instruments
The College assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the college estimates the
recoverable amount or the recoverable service
amount of the heritage asset.
Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the
particular asset no longer meets the definition of a
heritage asset. Transfers to heritage assets are only made
when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a
heritage asset is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is
recognised in surplus or deficit when the heritage
asset is derecognised.
Deemed cost
When the College initially recognises an asset using the
Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets using either
cost or fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition
cost). Where the accounting for assets is incomplete at
the start of the reporting year as the acquisition cost of
an asset is not available at that time, acquisition cost is
measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the
date the College adopted the Standards of GRAP (the
measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as the
fair value of an asset at the measurement date.

The College has the following types of financial assets
(classes and category) as reflected on the face of the
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
CLASS

C AT E G O R Y

Cash and cash equivalents

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables

Current Assets

The College recognises financial assets using trade date
accounting.
The College measures a financial asset and financial
liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs (for
financial instruments at amortised cost) that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
instrument.
The College first assesses whether the substance of
a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial
recognition, the college analyses a concessionary
loan into its component parts and accounts for each
component separately.
The College accounts for that part of a concessionary
loan that is:
- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or
- n on-exchange revenue, in accordance with the
Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the
recipient of the loan.
The College measures all financial instruments after
initial recognition as follows:
- F inancial instruments at fair value:
Fair-value at reporting date; or
- F inancial instruments at amortised cost:
Amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses; or
- F inancial instruments at cost:
Cost, less any impairment losses.
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Where the College cannot reliably measure the fair
value of an embedded derivative that has been
separated from a host contract that is a financial
instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures
the combined instrument at fair value. This requires a
reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost
or cost to fair value.
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an
investment in a residual interest measured at fair value,
the College reclassifies the investment from fair value to
cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is
no longer available becomes the cost.
If a reliable measure becomes available for an
investment in a residual interest for which a measure
was previously not available, and the instrument would
have been required to be measured at fair value, the
College reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of
a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair
value is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance
account. The reversal does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest
that is not measured at fair value because its fair value
cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial
liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the
amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets
The College assess at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
directly OR through the use of an allowance account
(debt impairment provision) . The amount of the loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

22

Derecognition
Financial assets
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are
allocated between the rights or obligations retained
and those transferred on the basis of their relative
fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights
and obligations are measured at their fair values at
that date. Any difference between the consideration
received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of
the transfer.
If the College transfers a financial asset in a transfer
that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and
retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee,
it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability
for that servicing contract. If the fee to be received is
not expected to compensate the College adequately
for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for
the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value.
If the fee to be received is expected to be more than
adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing
asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount
determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying
amount of the larger financial asset.
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the college
obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new
financial liability, or a servicing liability, the college
recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or
servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received is recognised in surplus
or deficit.
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset
and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in
its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger
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financial asset is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is
derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those
parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that
continues to be recognised. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part
derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because
the College has retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the
College continue to recognise the transferred asset in
its entirety and recognise a financial liability for the
consideration received. In subsequent periods, the
college recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability.
Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the
revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.
Financial liabilities
The College removes a financial liability (or a part of a
financial liability) from its statement of financial position
when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or
waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender
of debt instruments with substantially different terms is
accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for
as having extinguished the original financial liability and
having recognised a new financial liability.

The statutory receivable is initially measured at the

The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability (or part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus
or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or
assumed by another college by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the
Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
Presentation
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset
and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the College currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does
not qualify for derecognition, the College does not offset
the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.11. Statutory receivables
Funding receivable from DHET arise from non-contracted
arrangements as the basis for DHET funding is found in
the Division of Revenue Act. Cash receivable from DHET
as part of programme funding is regarded as a “statutory
receivable”.

transaction amount and subsequently measured using
the cost-method, which changes the initial measurement
to reflect any impairment or amounts derecognised.
An explanation on when the DHET programme funding
and any related receivables or payables are recorded
is provided in note 1.04 and 1.20.
The statutory receivable is included in Other receivables
from non-exchange transactions. Refer to note 5.
1.12. Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease
if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the College assesses the classification of each element
separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position at amounts equal
to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value
of the minimum lease payments is the rate implicit in
the lease.
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Operating leases - lessee
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each
period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of return on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The difference between the amounts recognised
as an expense and the contractual payments are
recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
1.13. Inventories

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. Income for leases is
disclosed under revenue in statement of financial
performance.

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where
inventories are acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at
the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories held for commercial purposes
are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
current replacement cost where they are held for:
- distribution through a non-exchange transaction; or
- c onsumption in the production process of goods to be
distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted
average cost formula. The same cost formula is used
for all inventories having a similar nature and use to
the College.
Recognition as an expense
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of
those inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. If
there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised
when the goods are distributed, or related services are
rendered. The amount of any writedown of inventories
to net realisable value or current replacement cost and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories,
arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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1.14. Cash and cash equivalents

Value in use

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining
service potential.

a. cash
b. cash in current bank accounts
c. c ash in interest bearing bank accounts or money
market accounts where the funds are available
immediately
d. f ixed term deposits used to deposit funds until it is
needed for the operations of the College, where the
maturity date does not exceed three months from
the reporting date. Longer term fixed deposits are
classified as other financial assets.
1.15. Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets managed by
the College with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a
manner consistent with that adopted by a profitorientated college, it generates a commercial return.
Boland College does not have any cashgenerating
assets.
1.16. Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The present value of the remaining service potential of
a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the
following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of
a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the
depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The
replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the
asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated
to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may
be replaced either through reproduction (replication)
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross
service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is
measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of
the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to
reflect the already consumed or expired service
potential of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than
cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits
or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future
economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating
asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a revalued
non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
The College assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that a non-cash-generating
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the College estimates the recoverable service amount
of the asset.
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Recognition and measurement

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an
asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The
rationale is that the College would not replace or
reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be
replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features
which are unnecessary for the goods or services the
asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that
have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the
demand for goods or services the asset provides. The
determination of the replacement cost or reproduction
cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus reflects the
service potential required of the asset.
Restoration cost approach
Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service
potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The
present value of the remaining service potential of the
asset is determined by subtracting the estimated
restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of
replacing the remaining service potential of the asset
before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower.
Service units approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of
the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of
the remaining service potential of the asset before
impairment, to conform to the reduced number of
service units expected from the asset in its impaired
state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service
potential of the asset before impairment is determined
as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost
of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.
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When the amount estimated for an impairment loss
is greater than the carrying amount of the noncashgenerating asset to which it relates, the College
recognises a liability only to the extent that is a
requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the
depreciation (amortisation) charge for the noncashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised
carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The College assess at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating
asset may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the College estimates the
recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a
non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable service amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable service amount. The
increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The
increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to
a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cashgenerating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued
non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the
depreciation (amortisation) charge for the noncashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised
carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating
asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a noncashgenerating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur
when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation
is appropriate.
1.17. Employee benefits
When an employee has rendered service to the College
during a reporting period, the College recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
-a
 s a liability (accrued expense), after deducting
any amount already paid. If the amount already paid
exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the
College recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid
expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund
-a
 s an expense, unless another Standard requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of
an asset.
The expected cost of compensated absences is
recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case
of non-accumulating absences, when the absence
occurs. The College measures the expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount that the College expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.
The College recognises the expected cost of bonus,
incentive and performance related payments when the
College has a present legal or constructive obligation
to make such payments as a result of past events and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

A present obligation exists when the College has no
realistic alternative but to make the payments.
When an employee has rendered service to the College
during a reporting period, the College recognises the
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in
exchange for that service:
- a s a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any
contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for service before
the reporting date, the College recognises that excess
as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payments or a cash refund
- a s an expense, unless another Standard requires or
permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of
an asset.
Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do
not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the
related service, they are discounted. The rate used to
discount reflects the time value of money. The currency
and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect
the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligation.

28

The College recognises termination benefits as
a liability and an expense when the college is
demonstrably committed to either:

Other long-term employee benefits

a. t erminate the employment of an employee or group
of employees before the normal retirement date

- long-term compensated absences such as long
service or sabbatical leave
- other long service benefits
- long-term disability benefits
- b onus, incentive and performance related payments
payable twelve months or more after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the
related service
- d eferred compensation paid twelve months or more
after the end of the reporting period in which it is
earned
- c ompensation payable by the College until an
individual enters new employment.

b. p
 rovide termination benefits as a result of an offer
made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
The College is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the college has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
The detailed plan includes [as a minimum]:
a. t he location, function, and approximate number of
employees whose services are to be terminated
b. t he termination benefits for each job classification
or function
c. the time at which the plan will be implemented.
Implementation begins as soon as possible and the
period of time to complete implementation is such that
material changes to the plan are not likely.
Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months
after the reporting date, they are discounted using an
appropriate discount rate. The rate used to discount the
benefit reflects the time value of money. The currency
and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect
the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the benefit.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits
shall be based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer.
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Other long-term employee benefits includes:

The amount recognised as a liability for other
long-term employee benefits the net total of the
following amounts:
- t he present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the reporting date
- m inus the fair value at the reporting date of plan
assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over
the period of employment using the above accounting
methodology. Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to surplus or deficit
in the period in which they arise. These obligations are
valued annually by independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

For other long-term employee benefits, the College
recognises the net total of the following amounts as
expense or revenue, except to the extent that another
Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of
an asset:

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the
College settles the obligation.

- current service cost
- interest cost
- t he expected return on any plan assets and on any
reimbursement right recognised as an asset
- a ctuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised
immediately
- p ast service cost, which shall all be recognised
immediately
- the effect of any curtailments or settlements.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of
a provision increases in each period to reflect the
passage of time. This increase is recognised as an
interest expense.

DHET management fee
The remuneration of management and other personnel
appointed on Persal, paid through Persal using the
College’s funds is measured at the cost of the
management remuneration to DHET and / or the
Provincial Department of Education, inclusive of leave,
bonus and other employee related accruals and/or
provisions, as and when incurred by DHET / the
Provincial Department of Education. The related
expense is recognised as a DHET management fee
expense as per note 20.
1.18. Provisions and contingencies
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the
provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating deficits.
If the College has a contract that is onerous, the present
obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only
when the College has a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring, identifying at least:
- t he activity/operating unit or part of a activity/
operating unit concerned
- the principal locations affected
- t he location, function, and approximate number of
employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated
- the expenditures that will be undertaken
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- the amount that would be recognised as a provision
- t he amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation.
- when the plan will be implemented
- h as raised a valid expectation in those affected
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features
to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, which
are those that are both:
- necessarily entailed by the restructuring
- n ot associated with the ongoing activities of
the College.
No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or
transfer of an operation until the College is committed
to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding
arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities
recognised in College combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently measured at the
higher of

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide
credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Where a fee is received by the College for issuing a
financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged
on loan commitments, it is considered in determining
the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged
and the College considers that an outflow of economic
resources is probable, the College recognises the
obligation at the higher of:
- t he amount determined using in the Standard of
GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets
- t he amount of the fee initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue
from Exchange Transactions.
1.19. Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and
volume rebates.
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Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all
the following conditions have been satisfied:
- t he College has transferred to the purchaser the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
- t he College retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the College
- t he costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably,
revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction
at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can
be estimated reliably when all the following conditions
are satisfied:

Service revenue is recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date.
Interest, royalties, dividends and tuition fees
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit,
using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in
accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised,
in surplus or deficit, when the College’s right to
receive payment has been established.
Tuition fees are recognised over the period of
instruction.

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the College
- t he stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date can be measured reliably
- t he costs incurred for the transaction and the costs
to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate
number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue
is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified
time frame unless there is evidence that some other
method better represents the stage of completion.
When a specific act is much more significant than
any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed
until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the
expenses recognised that are recoverable.
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1.20. Revenue from non-exchange transactions
When the College receives an asset or a service as part
of a non-exchange transaction and the definition and
recognition criteria of an asset is met, the College
recognises the asset and initially measures it at its fair
value as at the date of acquisition.
When there are conditions on transferred assets or
services received by the College which result therein
that the college has a present obligation on initial
recognition, which meets the definition and recognition
criteria of a liability, the College recognises a
corresponding liability, initially measured as the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date.
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction
recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except
to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect
of the same inflow.
As the College satisfies a present obligation recognised
as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a
non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it
reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised
and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that
reduction.
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured
at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised
by the College.
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When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the
College recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its
fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also
required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is
required to be recognised it will be measured as the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in
net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability
is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the
reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
Programme funding
The portion of programme funding received in cash is
recognised in full in the financial year when the College
has met at least 97% of its enrolment targets, measured
at the cash amount allocated to the College by DHET as
per note 17.
The portion of the programme funding retained by DHET
for paying salaries through Persal is recognised to the
extent that DHET has incurred Persal payroll expenditure
for employees placed at the College up to the reporting
date and to the extent that the conditions in the Funding
Norms have been met at the reporting date.
The full amount of programme funding allocated to the
College (cash and Persal portions) was recognised at
year end. The College reached their enrolment targets
with 97%.

The programme funding received through Persal is
measured at the amount of expenditure incurred by
DHET, inclusive of all accruals and provisions, e.g. leave
and bonus accruals. The related revenue is recognised
as programme funding revenue as per note 17. The
related expense is recognised as a DHET management
fee expense as per note 20.
The amount of programme funding revenue retained
by DHET for Persal salaries, but not paid by DHET
through Persal by year end, recognised as programme
funding revenue is measured at the value of the
expenses already contracted for and approved by
DHET as per note 17. In the comparative figures, the full
amount of programme funding allocated to the
College (cash and Persal portions) was recognised when
at least 97% of the enrolment targets were met and it
was measured at the cash amount allocated to the
College by DHET.
Transfers
Apart from Services in kind, which are only recognised
as indicated below, the College recognises an asset in
respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet
the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for
recognition as an asset.

Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities
The College recognise revenue in respect of debt
forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets
the definition of a liability or satisfies the criteria for
recognition as a liability, provided that the debt
forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a
contribution from owners.
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at
the carrying amount of debt forgiven.
Services in-kind
Programme funding received from 1 April 2015 onwards
from DHET through Persal, are recognised as services
in kind and are measured at the cost of the salaries
to DHET, inclusive of leave, bonus and other employee
related accruals and/or provisions, as and when
incurred by DHET. The related revenue is recognised as
programme funding revenue as per note 17. The related
expense is recognised as a DHET management fee
expense as per note 20.

The College recognises an asset in respect of transfers
when the transferred resources meet the definition of an
asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at
the date of acquisition.
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Concessionary loans received
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by
a party on terms that are not market related. The portion
of the loan that is repayable, along with any interest
payments, is an exchange transaction and is accounted
for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on
Financial Instruments. The off-market portion of the loan
is a non-exchange transaction. The off-market portion
of the loan that is recognised as non-exchange revenue
is calculated as the difference between the proceeds
received from the loan, and the present value of the
contractual cash flows of the loan, discounted using a
market related rate of interest.
The recognition of revenue is determined by the nature
of any conditions that exist in the loan agreement that
may give rise to a liability. Where a liability exists the
cash flow statement recognises revenue as and when it
satisfies the conditions of the loan agreement.
1.21. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
1.22. Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items in
the financial statements is amended due to better
presentation and/or better understandability and/or
comparability and/or due to the implementation of a
new or amended standard, prior period comparative
amounts are reclassified. Where accounting errors have
been identified in the current year, the correction is
made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
Where there has been a change in accounting policy in
the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively
as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly.
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1.23. Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means the overspending of
an approved budget without the necessary approvals
per the delegated limits, or expenditure incurred not in
accordance with the purpose of a cost centre.
All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with
the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement
of financial performance.
If expenditure is classified as satisfying the criteria for 2 or
more of the following: Unauthorised, irregular or fruitless
and wasteful, it is only reported under one of the headings in the following descending order: Unauthorised
expenditure; Irregular expenditure and then Fruitless and
wasteful expenditure.

1.24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

1.26. Related parties

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure
which was made in vain and would have been avoided
had reasonable care been exercised, by the employees
requesting and finally approving the expenditure.

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability
to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa,
or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint
control. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of
financial performance in the year that the expenditure
was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it
is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
If expenditure is classified as satisfying the criteria for
2 or more of the following: Unauthorised, irregular or
fruitless and wasteful, it is only reported under one of
the headings in the following descending order:
- Unauthorised expenditure
- Irregular expenditure, and then
- Fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
1.25. Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary
to the CET Act or any applicable legislation, or any
regulations made in terms of the CET Act, or is in
contravention of the College’s Supply Chain
Management Policy, or any other College policy.
Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.
Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expense,
classified in accordance with the nature of the expense,
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for
as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

Significant influence may be exercised in several ways,
usually by representation on the governing body but
also, for example, by participation in the policy-making
process, material transactions between entities within an
economic entity, interchange of managerial personnel
or dependence on technical information.
Significant influence may be gained by an ownership
interest, statute or agreement or otherwise. With regard
to an ownership interest, significant influence is
presumed in accordance with the definition contained
in the Standard of GRAP on Investments in Associates.
Management are those persons responsible for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the College,
including those charged with the governance of the
college in accordance with legislation, in instances
where they are required to perform such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered
to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that management in their
dealings with the College.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length
or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

If expenditure is classified as satisfying the criteria for 2
or more of the following: Unauthorised, irregular or
fruitless and wasteful, it is only reported under one of
the headings in the following descending order:
Unauthorised expenditure; Irregular expenditure and
then Fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
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1.27. Commitments
The College discloses commitments relating to each
class of capital assets ( PPE, Investment properties,
Intangible assets, Biological assets and Heritage assets)
recognised in the financial statements as well as future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for each of the following periods:
- Not later than one year,
- L ater than one year and not later than five years,
and- Later than five years.
1.32. Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, both
favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
Two types of events can be identified:
- t hose that provide evidence of conditions that existed
at the reporting date (adjusting events after the
reporting date)
- t hose that are indicative of conditions that arose after
the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the
reporting date).
Reporting date means the date of the last day of the
reporting period to which the financial statements relate.
The reporting date of the College is 31 December 2016.
The College adjusts the amounts recognised in its
financial statements to reflect adjusting events after
the reporting date. The College does not adjust the
amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect
non-adjusting events after the reporting date.
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09
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. S
 tandards, amendments to Standards, Directives
and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following Standards of GRAP and/or amendments thereto have
been approved by the Accounting Standards Board, but will only become
effective in future periods or have not been given an effective date by the
Minister of Finance. The College has not early-adopted any of these new

Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance
in the development of accounting policies in accordance
with GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

E ffective date
( P eriods starting
on or after )

F inancial year in W hich the
C ollege plans to apply T he
S tandard initially

GRAP16 Investment Property
Clarification of conditions necessary to classify property as investment property.
Increased disclosure relating to Repairs and Maintenance and Long-overdue projects.

Friday
01 April 2016

Sunday
31 December 2017

GRAP17 Property, Plant and Equipment
Increased disclosure relating to Repairs and Maintenance and Long-overdue projects.
Encouraged disclosure removed.

Friday
01 April 2016

Sunday
31 December 2017

Not yet set

Not yet set

T itle of the standard and nature of impending
changes in accounting P olicy and expected impact

GRAP20 Related Party Disclosures
Currently use it as guidance for accounting policies, therefore no impact expected on
initial adoption.
GRAP32 Service Concession Arrangements
Grantor: None

Not yet set

Not yet set

GRAP108 Statutory Receivables
No changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but additional disclosures
and separate classification in the notes will be done on adoption.

Not yet set

Not yet set

GRAP109 Accounting by Principals and Agents
No changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but additional disclosures
in the notes will be done on adoption.

Not yet set

Not yet set

IGRAP 17 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements
Where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset
None

Not yet set

Not yet set

Directive12 The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public Entities
None

Sunday
01 April 2018

Tuesday
31 December 2019

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
NOTE
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Call deposits
Call investments
Savings Accounts
Student Deposits, Debit Orders and Cards
Money Market Investment Drakenstein Municipality
Credit Cards
National Skills Fund

2016
R

2015
R

1,100
8,690,937
342,496
188,722
29,158
106,439
50,162
53,934
1,111

1,550
20,156,733
14,064,458
366,632
17,088
179,781
46,607
146,253
606,741

9,464,059

35,585,842

10,542,466
6,518,646
10,542,466
6,518,646

7,670,597
10,542,466
7,670,597
10,542,466

5,554,913
342,496
5,554,913
342,496

32,201,192
5,554,913
32,201,192
5,554,913

1,274
6,814
1,274
6,814

1,274
1,274

366,632
188,722
366,632
188,722

1,806,927
366,632
1,806,927
366,632

The College has the following bank accounts:
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 4052412057: Current Account
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 32 Day Investments
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 2073879771: Current Account (Travel allowances)
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 9074847382: Call Account
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
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ABSA

NOTE

2016
R

2015
R

Stellenbosch: 4087794731: Call Account CLC
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

367,472
367,472
-

367,472
367,472

17,088
29,158
17,088
29,158

45,346
17,088
45,346
17,088

9,245,521
2,165,477
9,245,521
2,165,477

12,132,155
9,245,521
12,132,155
9,245,521

148,472
96,585
148,472
96,585

152,305
148,472
152,305
148,472

177,562
63,788
177,562
63,788

154,803
177,562
154,803
177,562

46,607
50,162
46,607
50,162

43,579
46,607
43,579
46,607

606,741
1,111
606,741
1,111

1,833,533
606,741
1,833,533
606,741

8,509,545
8,509,545
-

7,981,238
8,509,545
7,981,238
8,509,545

ABSA
Stellenbosch: Savings Accounts
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 9288289217: Depositor Plus
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 4078879219: Student Deposits - Current Account
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Stellenbosch: 4078880852: Student Debit Orders - Current Account
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
Money Market Investment Drakenstein Municipality
Stellenbosch: 9112826777
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
ABSA
National Skills Fund
Stellenbosch: 4078880909: National Skills Fund
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
INVESTEC
Cape Town: DB 9BG0605
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
CASH ON HAND
Total cash and cash equivalents

1,100

1,550

9,464,059

35,585,842

342,496
50,162

312,622
46,607

Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral
32 Day Notice Deposit - 2068049430
Money Market Investment Drakenstein Municipality
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NOTE

2016
R

2015
R

C ash and cash equivalent balances that
are not available for use by the C ollege

8,877,200

21,610,837

WCED F&Q Funds
WCED/SETA Stipends
National Lottery Fund
National Skills Fund
Infrastructure grant 2014/2015
Infrastructure grant 2015/2016

7,194,921
1,111
436,655
1,244,512

429,857
8,764,810
145,105
606,741
3,811,684
7,852,641

N et B alance

R

PROVISION FOR
I M PA I R M E N T O F D E B T S
R

2,221,104
52,132
8,822,416
3,737,257
325,413
568,316
114,360
32,809

(1,306,355)
(137,304)
-

914,749
52,132
8,822,416
3,737,257
325,413
431,012
114,360
32,809

15,873,808

(1,443,659)

14,430,149

2,904,434
17,175
4,331,033
1,707,518
446,903
699,265
114,360
98,332

(1,622,579)
-

1,281,855
17,175
4,331,033
1,707,518
446,903
699,265
114,360
98,332

10,319,020

(1,622,579)

8,696,442

2016
R

2015
R

Current (0 – 30 days)
61 - 90 Days
121+ Days

2,221,104

380
300
2,903,754

T otal

2,221,104

2,904,434

4. T rade and other receivables
from exchange transactions
GROSS BALANCES
3 1 D ecember 2 0 1 6
Student debtors
Employee advances
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepayments
Sundry Debtors
Deposits
Other receivables [Accruals]
T otal trade and other receivables

R

3 1 D ecember 2 0 1 5
Student debtors
Employee advances
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepayments
Sundry Debtors
Deposits
Other receivables [Accruals]
T otal trade and other receivables

S tudents : A geing

E mployee advances : A geing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
121+ Days

2,210
13,467
7,823
28,632

17,175

T otal

52,132

17,175

Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 - 120 Days
121+ Days

159,499
5,094,000

641,037

3,568,917

100,500
3,589,495
-

T otal

8,822,416

4,331,033

759,120
746,520
3,470

P rovincial G overnment : A geing

N ational G overnment : A geing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 - 120 Days
121+ Days

2,228,147

698,941
522,818
207,460
278,300
-

T otal

3,737,257

1,707,519

P repayments : A geing
Current (0 – 30 days)

325,413

446,903

T otal

325,413

446,903
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2016
R

2015
R

Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 - 120 Days
121+ Days

179,878
14,659
12,240
1,413
392,935

196,003
2,737
5,935
592,922

T otal

601,125

797,597

O ther receivables : A geing

D eposits : A geing
121+ Days

114,360

114,360

T otal

114,360

114,360

Balance at beginning of the year
Contributions to provision
Bad debts written off against provision
Increase/ (Decrease) due to change in estimate

(1,622,579)
(1,443,659)
1,358,201
264,378

(1,338,874)
(1,313,887)
1,041,655
(11,473)

B alance at end of year

(1,443,659)

(1,622,579)

1,426,120
5,868,646
23,533
1,413
8,554,096

1,983,265
525,555
314,195
4,460,717
3,035,289

15,873,808

10,319,021

R econciliation of the provision for debt impairment

T rade and other receivables past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
Less than 30 Days
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
91 - 120 Days
121+ Days

T rade and other receivables impaired
The amount of the provision was R1 443 659 (2015: R1 622 579).
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
6 to 9 months past due

1,443,659

1,622,579

1,443,659

1,622,579

I nternally
determined credit
quality balance

E xternally
determined credit
quality balance

2016
R

2015
R

T he credit quality of trade and other
receivables from exchange transactions
Low
High
High
High
High
Medium
High

Student debtors
Employee advances
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepayments
Sundry debtors
Deposits & Accruals

914,749
52,132
8,822,416
3,737,257
325,413
431,012
147,169
14,430,149

-

C redit quality of financial assets carried at amortised cost .
M ethod of determining credit quality of other non - current financial assets .
The credit quality of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions are determined and monitored with reference to historical payment
trends. Accordingly the credit quality of the customers included in the balance of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions is determined
internally through application of the College’s own credit policy. Based on the evaluation of the historical payment trends, customers included in the
balance are categorised into the following:
High credit quality

Customers included in this category have evidenced no defaults or breaches in the contractual
repayments.

Medium credit quality

Customers included in this category are prone to late payments, but seldomly default on the entire
balance owing.

Low credit quality

Customers included in this balance includes customers that frequently default on their outstanding
balances and breach contract. No external credit quality determination have been performed.

T rade and other receivables from exchange transactions pledged as security .
No trade and other receivables are pledged as security.

5. O
 ther receivables from non-exchange
transactions, including transfers
NOTE

2016
R

2015
R

Statutory receivable: Government grants and subsidies (Refer also note 17)

10,834,000

8,457,000

T otal other debtors

10,834,000

8,457,000
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6. INVENTORIES
NOTE

2016
R

2015
R

Carrying value of inventory

203,847

1,658,872

Consumable stores

203,847

1,658,872

203,847

1,658,872

131,527
72,320

1,658,872

6,775,977

7,254,637

25,919,254

29,748,022

303,456

327,639

Cost of inventory consumed in the ordinary course of business and recognised in the cleaning
expense line item during the year.

1,018,227

1,211,173

Cost of inventory consumed in the ordinary course of business and recognised in the printing and
stationary expense line item during the year.

2,314,307

1,358,092

36,331,222

39,899,564

Consumable stores include:
Text books
Stationery and paper/cartridges
Cleaning and kithen stock

Amounts recognised as an expense
The following amounts, related to inventory, were recognised
in the statement of financial performance during the year:
Cost of inventory used to conduct maintenance during the year and included in the repairs and
maintenance expense line item.
Cost of inventory consumed in the ordinary course of business and recognised in the consumables
expense line item during the year.
Cost of fuel and oil inventory utilised during the year and recognised in the fuel and oil expense
line item during the year.

T otal amount of I nventories recognised in the
statement of financial performance during the year
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7. PROPER TY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2016
COST

2015
C arrying
Value

COST

R

A ccumulated
D epreciation and
I mpairment
R

C arrying
Value

R

A ccumulated
D epreciation and
I mpairment
R

R

Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery
and Equipment
Computer Equipment

71,033,034
169,140,354
3,291,730
298,766
22,497,722

(16,782,051)
(247,210)
(17,242,820)

71,033,034
152,358,303
3,291,730
51,556
5,254,903

71,033,034
158,833,362
4,542,580
298,766
21,554,263

(12,691,091)
(242,593)
(15,347,600)

71,033,034
146,142,271
4,542,580
56,173
6,206,663

8,071,977
26,005,053

(4,854,399)
(24,146,247)

3,217,578
1,858,806

6,700,577
26,638,386

(4,610,082)
(23,363,998)

2,090,496
3,274,388

T otal

300,338,636

(63,272,726)

237,065,910

289,600,968

(56,255,364)

233,345,605

R

R econciliation of P roperty P lant and E quipment - 2 0 1 6
C arrying
Value
O pening
B alance
R

A dditions

R

A cquisitions
through
entity
combinations
R

D isposals

D epreciation

T ransfers

I mpairment
loss

I mpairment
reversal

O ther
movements

R

R

R

R

R

R

969,317

-4,275

-4,617
-1,921,188

4,387

71,033,034
152,358,303
3,291,730
51,556
5,254,903

2,090,496
3,274,388

1,583,918
287,314

-3,541
-10,290

-453,295
-1,695,586

2,980

3,217,578
1,858,806

233,345,605

11,896,684

-18,106

-8,165,641

-

-

-

7,367

237,065,910

D isposals

D epreciation

T ransfers

I mpairment
loss

I mpairment
reversal

O ther
movements

R

R

R

R

R

R

C arrying
Value
C losing
B alance
R

Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery
and Equipment
Computer Equipment

71,033,034
146,142,271
4,542,580
56,173
6,206,663

T otal

-4,090,955

242,194
8,813,941

-

-

C arrying
Value
C losing
B alance
R

10,064,792
-10,064,792

R econciliation of P roperty P lant and E quipment - 2 0 1 5
C arrying
Value
O pening
B alance
R
Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery
and Equipment
Computer Equipment

71,033,034
147,460,754

T otal

A dditions

R

A cquisitions
through
entity
combinations
R

(3,955,909)

67,993

(829)

(3,278,764)

11,230

71,033,034
146,142,271
4,542,580
56,173
6,206,663

(428)

(446,204)
(3,157,455)

(3,615)

2,090,496
3,274,388

(1,257)

(10,838,332)

75,608

233,345,605

2,569,433
4,542,580

56,173
8,305,287

1,169,739

1,416,950
5,528,278

1,119,750
907,608

233,800,476

10,309,110

-

E stimated useful lives
The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated asset
useful lives:
CLASS
Land
Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment
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U seful L ife R ange in Y ears
Indefinite Life
50
5
6
5
4

-

-

-

O ther information / C apitalised E xpenditure

2016
R

2015
R

242,194
8,813,941
969,317
1,583,918
287,314

2,569,433
4,542,580
1,169,739
1,119,750
907,608

11,896,684

10,309,110

Land
Buildings
Capital Work in Progress
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment

C ontractual commitments for the acquisition of property , plant and equipment
By the date that the financial statements were authorised for issue the following contractual
commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment:
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Capital Work in Progress
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Text books

84,371
1,081,167
14,608

3,575,256
64,465
228,489
16,072

4,517
1,184,664

3,884,282

P P E for which the C ollege does not have the legal title , but has control
Legal title vests in Department of Public Works

T erms and conditions
The following properties are currently used by the college:
Caledon

College Street

ERF 276
& ERF 297

Caledon

Koalisie Street, Bergsig

ERF 1114

The Market Values as at 31 December 2016 (previous valuation 2013) of all the properties that the College
recognises on its Balance Sheet are listed below.

2013
R

2016
R

Caledon

Bergsig

Koalisie Street, Bergsig

ERF 1114

T2051/1972

8,000,000

15,000,000

Paarl

Drakenstein

Hospital Street

ERF 1019,
1020, 1021
& ERF 1023

T24249/1994
& T24835/2010

8,500,000

45,900,000

Paarl

Paarlberg

Cnr Hospital, Breede
& Pleinstreet

ERF 17258
& 19517

T24249/1994

34,100,000

20,600,000

Paarl

Huis Bruwer

Hospital Street

ERF 9018

T24249/1994

8,400,000

10,200,000

Stellenbosch

Van Riebeeck Street

Van Riebeeck Street

ERF 13072
& 13073*

T21638/1996
& T24835/2010

64,600,000

97,100,000

Strand

Aerodrome Street

71 Aerodrome Street,
Strandvale

ERF 9798

T24835/2010
& T32007/1993

31,200,000

32,900,000

Worcester

Rainier Street

Rainier Street

ERF 20800

T36523/1986
& T90269/2004

50,000,000

76,900,000

Worcester

Durban Street

Durban Street

ERF1688

T21097/1994

320,000

1,100,000

Stellenbosch

85 - 87 Bird Street

85 Bird Street

ERF 4431

T25137/2004

22,600,000

30,100,000

227,720,000

329,800,000

Property at 85 Bird Street is secured by a mortgage agreement as per note 11.
The mortgage agreement is with the Development Bank of South Africa. Term of loan is 10 years, ending 31 August 2018.
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8. T rade and other payables
from exchange transactions
2016
R
Trade creditors
Payments received in advance
Unclaimed Bursaries
Other Creditors
Bursary Fund
Housing Contribution
NSFAS Refunds
Other Payables
T O TA L C R E D I T O R S

2015
R

5,770,806
389,480
1,891,030
1,684,712
593,570
1,428,506
466,268

1,536,247
4,602,766
924,967
462,944
1,919,479

12,224,373

12,103,243

2,016,425
640,415

F air value of trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value.

9. PROVISIONS
R econciliation of M ovement in P rovision - 2 0 1 6
P erformance
B onus

P rovision for
L eave P ay

L ong S ervice
A wards

O ther
P rovisions

To t a l
R

Opening Balance

164,869

164,869

Provisions Raised
Unused Amounts
Reversed

233,236

233,236

(164,869)

(164,869)

Closing Balance

-

233,236

-

-

233,236

Non-current provisions
Current portion provisions

-

233,236

-

-

233,236

R econciliation of M ovement in P rovision - 2 0 1 5
Opening Balance

36,853

36,853

Provisions Raised

128,016

128,016

Closing Balance

-

164,869

-

-

164,869

Non-current provisions
Current portion provisions

-

164,869

-

-

164,869

P erformance B onus

P rovision for L eave P ay

Pay Progression cycle runs over a continuous period of twelve months commencing on 01 April of a particular year. Only an employee:

Employees are required to take a minimum of 10 days BCEA leave per
annum an may rollover the remaining 5 days which is to be utilised within
6 months of the financial year end. On termination, only the remaining
BCEA leave may be paid out to an employee.

-W
 ho has completed a continuous period of twelve months of his/her salary
notch on 31 March of a financial year and

L ong S ervice A wards
-W
 ho performed acceptably in line with the Staff Management and
Development system (SPDMS) will qualify for a pay progression, which,
if justified, will be paid annually after 1 July of each year.
Pay Progression is only applicable to staff who has not reached their
top notch yet.
Performance Bonus to a maximum of 10 % and 18 % of the employee’s
basic salary may be considered in recognition of an overall performance
rating of 4 and 5 respectively. The payment of these cash bonuses is not
guaranteed and is dependent on the college/department having sufficient
financial resources to pay them. All submissions are subjected to
moderation by the PM Moderation Committee. Performance bonuses
are paid annually after 1 July.
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Long Service Awards are made in recognition of the loyal, long-standing
contributions and support of the College staff. The following categories of
employees qualify for long-service awards:
Employees employed on a permanent basis within a minimum of five years
continuous unbroken service.
Employees appointed on a full-time, fixed contract longer than one year
and whose contract was extended on the same conditions for periods up to
five years and longer.

10. U
 nspent conditional
grants and receipts
2016
R

2015
R

Unspent Conditional Grants from other spheres of Government

14,946,855

21,610,837

National Skills Fund
WCED ECD Stipend
Infrastruct. Subsidy 2013/2014
Infrastruct. Subsidy (2015/2016)
National Lottery
WCED F&Q funds
Other Government Grants and Subsidies

1,111
12,027,712
436,655
1,244,512
1,236,864

606,741
8,764,810
3,811,684
7,852,641
145,105
429,857
-

T otal U nspent C onditional G rants and R eceipts

14,946,855

21,610,837

Non-current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts
Current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts

14,946,855

21,610,837

21,610,837
27,853,743
(34,517,724)

28,247,140
48,015,000
(54,651,303)

14,946,855

21,610,837

2016
R

2015
R

1,276,205

1,917,550

M ovements during the year
Balance at the beginning of year
Additions during the year
Income recognised during the year

11. Borrowings

Annuity Loans
The term of the loan is 10 years, ending 31 August 2018, the repayment amount is R71 431 per month.

The Mortgage agreement is with the Development Bank of South Africa. The mortage agreement is secured by a bond registered over 85 Bird Street,
Stellenbosch property as per note 7. The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the interest rates are considered market
related. The carrying amounts of the College’s borrowings are denominated in South African Rands.
T O TA L B O R R O W I N G S

1,276,205

1,917,550

641,345

Borrowings (Current)

732,014

Annuity Loans

732,014

641,345

Borrowings (Non-Current)

544,191

1,276,205

2016
R

2015
R

1,603,046
6,076,176
5,951,042
30,725,469
427,137

5,345,890
3,284,600
8,793,527
32,987,529
498,414

44,782,869

50,909,960

14,324,275
10,536,061
9,540,609

10,216,700
14,940,400
9,732,299

34,400,945

34,889,399

79,183,814

85,799,359

12. T uition and related fees

Tuition fees paid directly by students or private bursaries
Tuition fees - students (Report 191)
Tuition fees - students (NCV)
Residential fees
Skills, Learnerships and Partnerships
Examination fees

Tuition fees funded by NSFAS bursaries
Tuition fees - students (Report 191)
Tuition fees - students (NCV)
Residential fees

T otal tuition and related fees
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13. S ale of goods and rendering of services
2016
R

S ale of goods
Consumables

2015
R

84,941

27,952

84,941

27,952

R endering of services
Events, conferences, seminars

110,495

17,635

110,495

17,635

195,436

45,586

2016
R

2015
R

Rental of facilities

3,066,865

1,765,898

Contingent rentals

3,066,865

1,765,898

T otal rentals

3,066,865

1,765,898

T otal sale of goods and rendering of services

14. R ental of facilities and equipment

Details
Letting of halls, classrooms, to mainly other government institutions, and vacant residences to mainly University of Stellenbosch students.
Boland College students get first priority to accommodation.

15. I nvestment income
2016
R

2015
R

Interest - Financial assets

1,788,008

2,829,463

Total interest income

1,788,008

2,829,463

T otal investment income

1,788,008

2,829,463

2016
R

2015
R

41,234
684,986
643,166
123,225
440,123

21,532
54,586
588,457
301,725
181,165

1,932,733

1,147,464

16. O ther income

From exchange transactions
Sundry income
Insurance pay-outs
Admin Costs
Bad Debts Recovered
Skills Levy Grant Received

17. G overnment grants and subsidies
R econciliation of M ovement - 2 0 1 6
B alance
unspent at
beginning of
year
R

C urrent
year
receipts
R

Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal
Programme funding: Grants paid cash
Infrastructure Subsidy
T otal G overnment G rant and S ubsidies

-

-

C onditions met
- transferred to
revenue
R

C onditions
still to be met
- remain
liabilities
R

(80,144,325)
(33,920,000)
(9,983,158)

(80,144,325)
(33,920,000)
(9,983,158)

(124,047,483)

(124,047,483)

(70,532,714)
(23,536,000)
(806,634)
(14,452,745)
(8,162,262)

(70,532,714)
(23,536,000)
(806,634)
(14,452,745)
(8,162,262)

(117,490,355)

(117,490,355)

R econciliation of M ovement - 2 0 1 5
Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal
Programme funding: Grants paid cash
Earmarked recurrent funding
NSF Funding
Infrastructure Subsidy
T otal G overnment G rant and S ubsidies

C hanges in levels of government grants
Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, (Act 10
of 2014), no significant changes in the level of government grant funding
are expected over the forthcoming 3 financial years.
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-

-

18. Public contributions and donations
2016
R
Goods received in kind

709,756

Total public contributions and donations

709,756

2015
R

R econciliation of conditional contributions
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

(709,756)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities

(709,756)

Donated vehicles will exclusively be used for training purposes. Vehicles were donated without a manufacturer’s
warranty and/or service, and/or maintenance plan. The donation was accepted on the basis that no
consideration will be payable by the donee.

19. O ther transfers and sponsorships

Gifts and sponsorships received
Transfer payment from W&R Seta

2016
R

2015
R

116,666
438,767

192,103
23,264

555,433

215,367

2016
R

2015
R

49,880,393
1,337,921
184,699
593,570
29,338
237,811
596,291
163,887
68,366
71,486

51,431,584
2,827,455
990
28,980
896,643
735,520
183,351
128,017
219,421

53,163,761

56,451,961

62,122,472
10,619,129
2,349,000
5,053,724

68,974,756
-

80,144,325

68,974,756

133,308,086

125,426,716

2016
R

2015
R

52,863,961
21,509,920
3,745,980
1,045,278
979,184

47,186,001
17,381,460
3,059,314
1,323,120

80,144,324

68,949,895

16,055,229
25,467,042
1,835,489
8,476,288

17,502,454
28,378,078
172,053
2,387,156
7,071,620

51,834,049

55,511,361

20. E
 mployee related costs
and DHET management fee
E mployee related costs
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Housing benefits and allowances
Long-service awards
Other Payroll related
Other employee related costs
College Council
Leave Accrual
WCA

D H E T management fee cost
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Housing benefits and allowances
Performance and other bonuses

T otal employee related costs and D H E T management fee

E xpenses paid via P ersal from C ollege programme funding
Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Management remuneration
Lecturers not engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff not engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses

E xpenses paid via C ollege payroll
Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Management remuneration
Lecturers not engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff not engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
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E xpenses paid via P ersal from C ollege programme funding

2016
R

2015
R

68,919,191
46,976,962
3,745,980

64,688,455
45,759,538
3,231,367

119,642,133

113,679,360

2,880,767
9,455,473

3,710,276
7,071,620

12,336,240

10,781,896

T otal employee cost and D H E T management fee
Total funded
Lecturers engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Management remuneration

Total non-funded
Lecturers not engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses
Support staff not engaged in Report 191 and NCV courses

In terms of the CET Act, employees that are employed by DHET and have a dual accountability towards the council and DHET respectively.
The College has a formal process of approving new posts, based on operational need and availability of funds, before recruitment.
Only one new position (Support Staff), was established in 2016/2017 financial year and was funded through DHET Persal funding : R13 071 monthly.

21. Impairment of debtors
Changes in debt impairment provision
Bad Debts written off

1,179,281
306,852

1,313,887
61,914

1,486,133

1,375,802

22. D epreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment

8,165,641

10,838,332

8,165,641

10,838,332

63,282
1,157,653
8,379,275

15,340
1,086,118
11,689,813

9,600,210

12,791,271

4,458,374
3,160,052

2,497,746
4,094,994

7,618,426

6,592,740

23. G rants, bursaries and subsidies paid
Private/Donor Bursaries
Boland College Bursary
Transport

24. B ooks and learning materials
Text books (NCV)
Text books (Report 191)

24. Programme Consumables
Program Consumables

7,220,152

7,298,226

7,220,152

7,298,226

5,743,055
12,003
19,440
1,001,480

7,254,637
-

6,775,977

7,254,637

1,008,760
1,971,106
928,327

1,236,711
2,612,636
154,721

3,908,193

4,004,069

312,672
353,120

435,803
21,716

665,791

457,519

25. R epairs and maintenance
Land, buildings and infrastructure - Professional services
Vehicles - Professional services
Labour
Consumables

26. O perating lease expense
Vehicles
Office equipment - Photocopiers
Computer equipment - laptops

27. Professional services
Accounting and financial management fees
Legal fees

28. Finance costs
Borrowings
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215,829

294,118

215,829

294,118

29. Other expenses

Bank charges
Catering expenses
Cleaning and pest control
Fuel and oil
Insurance
SRC Expenses
Rent of Building/Venues
Subscription, membership fees and levies
Training
Uniforms, protective clothing and health and safety
Job Placement cost

2016
R

2015
R

537,510
252,805
1,018,227
303,456
702,428
240,295
828,681
179,731
133,824
508,204
-

527,673
323,022
1,211,173
327,639
729,124
294,874
954,074
296,030
172,625
191,620
1,073,000

4,705,162

6,100,854

2016
R

2015
R

30. G ain/(Loss) on sale of assets

Property, plant and equipment

7,059)

(81,837)

(7,059)

(81,837)
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31. C ash flows from operating activities

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Movement in provisions
Debt impairment
Gain/loss on sale of assets
Part of programme funding that was paid via Persal
Part of programme funding that was paid via Persal

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables from non-exchange transactions
Increase/(decrease) in unspent conditional grants and receipts
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables from exchange transactions
N et cash flows from operating activities

2016
R

2015
R

(8,629,965)

(12,455,877)

8,165,641
1,486,133
7,059
(80,144,325)
80,144,325

10,838,332
128,017
1,375,802
(81,837)
(70,532,714)
70,532,714

1,028,867

(195,564)

1,455,025
(7,219,840)
(2,377,000)
(6,663,982)
189,496

(446,150)
(9,192,687)

(13,587,433)

(13,880,394)

2016
R

2015
R

2,149,577
1,878,954

1,909,265
3,023,004

4,028,530

4,932,269

928,327
1,701,933

928,327
2,630,259

2,630,259

3,558,586

1,421,809
1,573,684

1,032,160
1,335,505

2,995,493

2,367,665

(6,636,303)
2,590,310

32. O perating lease commitments

At the reporting date the College has outstanding commitments under operating leases which fall due
as follows: Operating lease arrangements
Lessee
The major category of asset leased is Photocopiers.
At the reporting date the College had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years

Operating Leases consists of the following:
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 3 years.
No contingent rent is payable.

The major category of asset leased is Laptops.
At the reporting date the College had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years

Operating Leases consists of the following:
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 3 years.
No contingent rent is payable.

The major category of asset leased is Motor Vehicles.
At the reporting date the College had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years

Operating Leases consists of the following:
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 5 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 5 years.
No contingent rent is payable. New 2017 contract term 3 years.
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2016
R

2015
R

4,499,712
5,154,571

3,869,752
6,988,768

9,654,283

10,858,520

3,066,865

1,765,898

2016
R

2015
R

T otal
At the reporting date the College had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years

Lessor
Operating Leases consists of the following:
Certain of the College’s assets is held to generate rental income. Lease agreements are non-cancellable
and have terms of 1 year. There are no contingent rents receivable. Boland College mainly let halls and
classrooms to other government institutions, and vacant residences to mainly University of Stellenbosch
students. Boland College students get first priority to accommodation.
Contingent rents recognised as revenue in the period

33. C ommitments
C O M M I T M E N T S I N R E S P E C T O F C A P I TA L E X P E N D I T U R E
Approved and contracted for

1,095,776

3,884,283

PPE
Buildings
Computer Equipment
Furniture and Fittings
Workshop Equipment

1,095,776
1,081,167

3,884,283
3,575,256
16,072
64,465
228,490

T otal capital commitments

1,095,776

3,884,283

1,081,167
14,608

3,615,503
268,780

1,095,776

3,884,283

14,608

The capital commitments will be financed from
Government Grants
Own resources
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Approved and contracted for

2016
R

2015
R

88,888

1,221,734

4,517

Textbooks
Stationery
Maintenance

84,371

569,594
328,945
323,195

T otal capital commitments

88,888

1,221,734

The capital commitments will be financed from
Government Grants
Own resources

1,221,734
88,888
88,888

34. I n-kind donations and assistance
The College received the following in-kind donations and assistance:
F O R D D O N AT I O N
Donated vehicles will exclusively be used for training purposes. Vehicles
were donated without a manufacturer’s warranty and/or service, and/or
maintenance plan. The donation was accepted on the basis that no
consideration will be payable by the donee.

35. R elated parties
M embers of key management
Adams, W
Coetzee, JJM
Gelderblom, IJ
Myburgh, EC
Peters, E

VP: I&D
VP: CS
CFO
Principal
VP: EDT

Close family member of key management

None

DHET (Including NSFAS and NSF)

O ther T V E T C olleges
South Cape College
Northlink College
False Bay College
West Coast College
College of Cape Town

S E TA s
AgriSETA
BANKSETA
CATHSSETA
CETA
CHIETA
ETDP SETA
EWSETA
FP&M SETA
HWSETA
INSETA
MerSETA
PSETA
Services SETA
W & R Seta
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National Government Department

1,221,734

C ouncil M embers
Bakker, J
Bleazard, DK [Chairperson]
Cloete, HCA
Kabanyane, GC
Landiwe, Z
Lingela, S
MacMaster, LLM
Malgas, S
Matolengwe, N
Mfazwe, S (resigned May 2016)
Myburgh, EC
Olivier, A (resigned 13 October 2016)
Peters, E
Pietersen, VRF
Plaatjies, D
Van der Merwe, HA
Van Louw, CL

A mounts included in R eceivable ( P ayable ) regarding related parties
AGRISETA
CATHSETA
CETA
CHIETA
DHET
ETDP SETA
EWSETA
FP&M SETA
INSETA
MERSETA
Northlink College
PSETA
Services SETA
W & R Seta

2016
R

2015
R

93,579
102,400
10,834,000
395,000
73,500
3,020
213,700
583,306
46,800

45,000
68,881
93,579
8,457,000
323,500
110,000
1,000
452,888
-

3,745,980

3,059,314

85,500
52,552
713,500
2,217,625
237,000
303,897
376,973
894,251
79,800
1,734,500

560,163
54,800
1,613,500
787,725
135,000
147,000
905,776
302,205
681,937
-

85,500
25,000
110,700
6,750

18,700
223,388

381,034
46,800

R elated party transactions
Key management personnel employee cost
T otal employee cost for the year

S ales to related parties
AGRISETA
BANKSETA
CATHSSETA
CETA
CHIETA
ETDP SETA
HWSETA
INSETA
MerSETA
PSETA
Services SETA
South Cape College
W & R Seta

A dministration fees received from related parties
BANKSETA
CATHSSETA
CETA
PSETA
Services SETA
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36. E vents after the reporting date
ADJUSTING EVENTS
There were no adjusting events after the reporting date.

37. R estatement of comparative informations
T he following comparative information has been restated :
Reclassification of Accounts Receivable/Payable due to offsetting is not permitted in
accordance with GRAP 1.
Reclassification of Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions to Trade
and other receivables from non-exchange transactions. Amounts reclassified relate to
unpaid government grants in accordance with GRAP 23 and GRAP 3.
Recognition of Persal income relating to the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
T he restatements resulted in
the following adjustments :

As
previously
reported
R

C orrection of
errors

R estated

R

R

12,004,911
13,624,109

98,333
-4,927,667
8,457,000

12,103,243
8,696,442
8,457,000

39

-248,516,262

-3,431,000

-251,947,262

17

114,059,355

3,431,000

117,490,355

15,886,877

-3,431,000

12,455,877

NOTES

2015
Statement
Trade and
Trade and
Trade and

of Financial Position
other payables from exchange transactions
other receivables from exchange transactions
other receivables from non-exchange transactions

Statement of net-assets
Accumulated surplus

8
4
5

2015
Statement of Financial Performance
Government grants and subsidies
S hor T fall for the year

38. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2016, the College had
accumulated surplus of R 243 317 297 and that the College’s total assets
exceed its liabilities by R243 317 297.

dependent on programme funding received from DHET at a level which,
when combined with other revenue generated by the College, is sufficient
to fund the operations of the College.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting
policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will
be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets
and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will
occur in the ordinary course of business.

To ensure that Boland College remains a going concern, the Executive
Committee continuously reviews the financial position of the College and
plan pro-active measurements to sustain financial viability. Some of these
measurements include the review of the organogram to ensure effective
delivery as well as cost containment measures. Although the financial
statements of the previous two years reflect a shortfall, the trend is that the
shortfall is reducing and the College is confident that continuous practices
will lead to the elimination of the shortfall.

The ability of the College to continue as a going concern is dependent
on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the College is

39. Net Assets
In terms of the CET Act, the Minister of Higher Education and Training may
close a public college subject to certain conditions. In such a case, the net
assets of the College, comprising the accumulated surplus and reserves, will
vest in the Minister of Higher Education and Training after the settlement of
all liabilities.
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40. R
 isk management and other financial
instrument disclosures
M aximum credit risk exposure
Credit risk exposure arise from mainly from cash deposits, cash equivalents
and trade debtors. The College only deposits cash with major banks with
high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base, comprising mainly
of students of the College.

Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing
basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used.
Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, management assesses the
credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the council.
The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.
2016
R

2015
R

9,464,059
14,430,149

35,585,842
8,696,442

2016
R

2015
R

50,162

46,607

342,496

312,622

The financial assets expose the College to credit risk. The value of the maximum exposure to credit risk are
as follows for each of classes of financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

C ollateral held and other credit enhancements
The credit risk exposure, as posed by the financial assets detailed above, is further mitigated by the
collateral held in relation to these instruments:
Bank Absa - collateral held
Municipal deposits held at Absa Bank
Bank Absa - collateral held
In terms of the agreement between DBSA and Boland College, the college shall open an account with
Absa Bank covering 3 months installments at any time during the loan.

LIQUIDITY RISK
The College’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future
commitments. The College manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review
of future commitments and credit facilities.

The table below analyses the College’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities
are monitored.
N ot later than one month

L ater than one month
and not later than
three months

71,431
1,050,139

142,862
2,100,278

L ater than three months
and not later than
one year

L ater than one year and
not later than five years

642,881
11,470,172

571,449
35,392,325

N ot later than one month

L ater than one month
and not later than
three months

71,431
936,479

142,862
1,872,958

L ater than three months
and not later than
one year

L ater than one year and
not later than five years

642,881
8,428,311

1,428,623
45,983,480

2016
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

2016
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

2015
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

2015
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

I N T E R E S T R AT E R I S K
As the College has no significant interest-bearing assets, the College’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
2016
R

2015
R

188,722
342,496

366,632
14,064,458

At year end, financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows:
Call deposits
Notice deposits
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I nterest rate risk sensitivity analysis

I M PA C T

The susceptibility of the College’s financial performance to changes in interest rates can be
illustrated as follows:
2016
Interest income
Interest rate increase of 25 basis points
Interest rate decrease 25 basis points

No significant impact
No significant impact

Interest expense
Interest rate increase of 25 basis points
Interest rate decrease 25 basis points

No significant impact
No significant impact

2015
Interest income
Interest rate increase of 25 basis points
Interest rate decrease 25 basis points

No significant impact
No significant impact

Interest expense
Interest rate increase of 25 basis points
Interest rate decrease 25 basis points

No significant impact
No significant impact

F inancial assets pledged
as security

L ine item that the
financial asset is
included in

Value of the
balance pledged
as security

D etails of the
liability that it
was pledged as
security for

T erms and
conditions of
the pledging
arrangement

Municipal deposits
Bond repayment

Kept as security
Kept as security

The following financial assets were pledged
as security for liabilities:
Description of financial asset
Municipal Deposits
Bond

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

42. Tax exemption
The College is exempt from normal taxation in terms of Section 10(1)(cN)
of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No.58 of 1962).
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50,162
342,496
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